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Forward-looking statements

The matters discussed in this Form 10-K ane forward-looking statements are based on sumanagement expectations that involve
substantial risks and uncertainties, which coulaseaactual results to differ materially from theulés expressed in, or implied by, these
forward-looking statements. These statements catemified by the fact that they do not relatécsly to historical or current facts. They use
words such as "aim," "anticipate," "believe," "adll"estimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "plarfroject," "should," "will be," "will
continue,” "will likely result,” "would" and othexrords and terms of similar meaning in conjunctidthva discussion of future operating or
financial performance. You should read statemdrgsdontain these words carefully, because thegudgsour future expectations, contain
projections of our future results of operation®bour financial position or state other "forwambking" information.

We believe that it is important to communéour future expectations to our investors. Hawethere are events in the future that we are
not able to accurately predict or control. Thedagtisted under Item 1A, Risk Factors, as wekiag cautionary language in this Form 10-K,
provide examples of risks, uncertainties and evinaismay cause our actual results to differ maligrfrom the expectations we describe in
forward-looking statements. Although we believet thar expectations are based on reasonable assumspdictual results may differ materially
from those in the forward looking statements assallt of various factors, including, but not lintite, those described under Item 1A, Risk
Factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Forward-looking statements speak only abefdate of this Form 10-K. Except as requiredentiederal securities laws and the rules and
regulations of the SEC, we do not have any intaentmd do not undertake, to update any forwardit@pktatements to reflect events or
circumstances arising after the date of this FobriK Llwhether as a result of new information, futawents or otherwise. As a result of these
risks and uncertainties, readers are cautionetbrigace undue reliance on the forward-lookingestagnts included in this Form 10-K or that
may be made elsewhere from time to time by, orefmali of us. All forward-looking statements atttidble to us are expressly qualified by
these cautionary statements.




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are one of the largest distributorsesidential and non-residential roofing materialthie United States and Canada. We also
distribute other complementary building materiaisjuding siding, windows, specialty lumber produahd waterproofing systems for
residential and nonresidential building exteriék& currently operate 178 branches in 34 stateSaanadian provinces, carrying up to 10,
SKUs and serving more than 40,000 customers. Wa Bading distributor of roofing materials in keyetropolitan markets in the Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic, Midwest, Central Plains, South anduowvest regions of the United States and in Eastamada.

For the fiscal year ended September 307 2@3idential roofing products comprised 42% af gales, non-residential roofing products

accounted for 36% of our sales, and siding, waterfiing systems, windows, specialty lumber and oéxgerior building products provided the
remaining 22% of our sales.

We also provide our customers a comprekerairay of value-added services, including:

. advice and assistance to contractors throughouwtdhstruction process, including product identifima, specification an
technical support;

. job site delivery, rooftop loading and logisticalsgices;

. tapered insulation design and layout servi

. metal fabrication and related metal roofing desigd layout service:

. trade credit; and

. marketing support, including project leads for caators.

We believe the additional services we pevdtrengthen our relationships with our custoraasdistinguish us from our competition. 1
vast majority of orders require at least some e§¢hservices. Our ability to provide these servidfisiently and reliably can save contractors
time and money. We also believe that our value-ddeevices enable us to achieve attractive grasfit prargins on our product sales. We
have earned a reputation for a high level of produailability, excellent employees, professiomaliand highquality service, including timely
accurate and safe delivery of products.

Our diverse customer base represents disagt portion of the residential and non-residainmoofing contractors in most of our markets.
Reflecting the overall market for roofing productg sell the majority of our products to roofinghtractors that are involved on a local bas
the replacement, or re-roofing, component of tlading industry. We utilize a branch-based operatimgdel in which branches maintain local
customer relationships but benefit from centraliigtttions such as information technology, accagtfinancial reporting, credit, purchasing,
legal and tax services. This allows us to providet@mers with specialized products and personalaeal services tailored to a geographic
region, while benefiting from the resources andesefficiencies of a national distributor.

We have achieved our growth through a comtinn of seventeen strategic and complementanyisitigns between 1998 and 2007,
opening new branch locations, acquiring branchesoaoadening our product offering. We have grovamfi$76.7 million in sales in fiscal ye
1998 to $1.65 billion in sales in fiscal year 20@/hich represents a compound annual growth rad®@&%. Our internal growth, which
includes growth from existing and newly opened bhes but excludes growth from acquired branches,5:26 per annum over the same
period. Acquired branches are excluded from infegrawvth measures until they have been under oureoship for at least four full fiscal
quarters




at the start of the reporting period. During tleis-fyear period, we opened thirty-two new branchtions and our same store sales increased at
average of 1.9% per annum. Same store sales anedefs the aggregate sales from branches op#nef@ntire comparable annual periods
within the eight-year period. Income from operasidras increased from $5.3 million in fiscal yea®8% $69.8 million in fiscal year 2007,
which represents a compound annual growth rat@ @%. We believe that our proven business modetleiner industry-leading growth and
operating profit margins.

In fiscal 2007, we had internal contractad.8% and 18.4% in sales and income from opanatirespectively, over fiscal 2006. Fiscal
year 2007 had four fewer business days as compaiffeztal 2006, which we believe negatively affecéanual existing market sales
approximately 1.5%. We also opened eight new bréodtions, closed two locations, and acquired is&en branches through our
acquisitions of North Coast Commercial Roofing 8yss, Inc. ("North Coast") and Wholesale Roofing @y"WRS").

History

Our predecessor, Beacon Sales Companywas.founded in Charlestown, Massachusetts (app&bston) in 1928. In 1984, when our
former Chairman Andrew Logie acquired Beacon S@espany with other investors, Beacon operated thistebution facilities and
generated approximately $16 million in annual resxerin August 1997, Code, Hennessy & Simmons LP.La Chicago-based private equity
fund, and certain members of management, purct2esadon Sales Company to use it as a platform toiectpading regional roofing
materials distributors throughout the United Statied Canada. At the time of the purchase by Codméksy and management, Beacon Sales
Company operated seven branches in New Englandemetated approximately $72 million of revenue atfiguprimarily from the sale of
non-residential roofing products. Since 1997, weehmade seventeen strategic and complementarysitops. Also since 1997, we have
opened a total of thirty-two new branches. We halge expanded our product offerings to offer messdential roofing products and
complementary exterior building materials and edadervices. Our strategic acquisitions, branclaesions, and product line extensions have
increased the diversity of both our customer baskl@cal market focus and generated cost savimgsigin increased purchasing power and
reduced overhead expenses as a percentage ofeeetWa completed an initial public offering ("IPihd became a public company in
September 2004, and completed a secondary stoghrgffin December 2005.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 199ur @rincipal executive offices are located at Oa&dland Park Drive, Peabody, MA 01960
and our telephone number is (978) 535-7668. Owrhet website addressvisvw.beaconroofingsupply.com

U.S. Industry Overview

The U.S. roofing market, based upon mariufac sales to distributors and others, was esticht be approximately $12.7 billion in 20
which is the most recent annual data availablest@and is projected to grow 1.9% annually through®to $14.0 billion. We believe this rate
of growth is consistent with the stable long-tenravgth rates in the industry over the past 40 years.

The U.S. roofing market can be separatetimo categories: the residential roofing marked ¢he non-residential roofing market. The
residential roofing market accounted for approxeha65% of the total U.S. market by volume in 200Brough the end of the decade, non-
residential roofing construction is expected tovwgfaster than residential roofing construction.

Over 70% of expenditures in the roofing kearare for re-roofing projects, with the balaneénly for new construction. Re-roofing
projects are generally considered maintenance gpalrrexpenditures and are less likely than nevstroation projects to be postponed during
periods of recession or slow




economic growth. As a result, demand for roofingdorcts is less volatile than overall demand forstauction products.

Regional variations in economic activitfluence the level of demand for roofing producteoas the United States. Of particular
importance are regional differences in the levei@i home construction and renovation, since thigleatial market for roofing products
accounts for approximately 65% of demand. Demogcapnds, including population growth and migraticontribute to regional variations
in residential demand for roofing products throtlggir influence on regional housing starts andtagshome sales.

Roofing distributors

Wholesale distribution is the dominant dlisttion channel for both residential and nonrestig roofing products. Wholesale roofing
product distributors serve the important role d@ilfeating the purchasing relationships betweerfirgpmaterials manufacturers and thousands
of contractors. Wholesale distributors also mamtacalized inventories, extend trade credit, giveduct advice and provide delivery and
logistics services.

Despite some recent consolidation, theingofhaterials distribution industry remains highlggmented. The industry is characterized |
large number of small and local regional particisaAs a result of their small size, many of theistributors lack the corporate, operating and
IT infrastructure required to compete effectively.

Residential roofing market

Within the residential roofing market, tleeroofing market is more than twice the size &f tlew roofing market, accounting for over 67%
of the residential roofing demand in 2005. Overriegt several years, reofing demand is expected to continue to exceedroefing demant
with the share of re-roofing expected to increasé4% in 2010.

Driving this demand for re-roofing is arirggU.S. housing stock. Over one-third of the Lh&using stock was built prior to 1960, with
the median age of U.S. homes being over 30 yeashdlt shingles, which dominate the residentiabafing market with over an 80% share,
have an expected useful life of 15 to 20 years.

A number of factors also generate re-rgptiemand, including one-time weather damage (ssi¢tuaricanes Katrina and Rita which
increased demand in 2006), improvement expendiamdshomeowners looking to upgrade their homegsS#l existing homes can affect re-
roofing demand, as some renovation decisions ade g sellers preparing their houses for sale @émekr® made by new owners within the 1
year or two of occupanc

Within the new construction portion of tiesidential roofing market, housing starts togetkigh larger average roof sizes have supported
prior growth in new residential roofing demand. Nlegusing starts declined during 2006 and 2007 ta@gace may continue at the lower
levels or decline further in the near future.

Non-residential roofing market

Demand for roofing products used on nomdeggtial buildings is forecast to advance at aeflasdte than roofing products used in
residential construction, as a result of a contihgiowth in construction activity in the office,ramercial and industrial markets. New non-
residential roofing is currently the fastest-grogvjportion of the U.S. roofing market. Good econopuaditions, including a continued positive
outlook for business and capital spending, are e&epeto drive expenditures for non-residential mogf High-margin metal roofing is expected
to play an important role in the increased demand.




In 2005, re-roofing projects representepragpimately 79% of the total non-residential demarRe+oofing activity tends to be less cycli
than new construction and depends in part upotyies of materials on existing roofs, their expédifespan and intervening factors such as
wind or water damage.

The non-residential roofing market includasoffice and commercial market, an industrialkeiand an institutional market. Office and
commercial roofing projects, the single largest ponent of the non-residential roofing market at 53% expected to continue to show gains.
Industrial roofing projects, representing 24% ofifresidential roofing product sales, should alsmgr~ollowing a large contraction in non-
residential construction from 2000 to 2002, norietestial roofing sales rebounded strongly in regesars.

The institutional market is comprised priityaof healthcare and educational constructiorivétes. This market will continue to benefit
from an aging baby boom population that will driereases in the nation's healthcare infrastrucageavell as increasing school enrollments
that will require new and replacement facilities.

Complementary building products

Demand for complementary building prodwsttsh as siding, windows and doors for both thedesgial and non-residential markets also
grew in recent years. As in the roofing industmgimmdind for these products is driven by the repairramodeling market as well as the new
construction market.

These complementary products also sigmiflgacontribute to the overall building productsriet. In 2005, the U.S. siding market was
approximately $10 billion and the U.S. window ambdindustry was approximately $30 billion. Bothtbése markets are expected to grow in
line with that of the roofing industry over the neeveral years.

Our Strengths

We believe the sales and earnings growthawe achieved over time has been and will contiadee driven by our primary competitive
strengths, which include the following:

. National scope combined with regional expertise. We believe we are one of the three largest roafiagerials distributors i
the United States and Canada. We utilize a braaskoperating model in which branches maintaial logstomer
relationships but benefit from centralized funcicuch as information technology, accounting, fam@reporting, credit,
purchasing, legal and tax services. This allowysovide customers with specialized products gerdonalized local services
tailored to a geographic region, while benefitingni the resources and scale efficiencies of a maltidistributor.

. Diversified business model that reduces impact of economic downturns. We believe that our business is meaningf
protected in an economic downturn because of @ir boncentration in re-roofing, the mix of our sateetween residential and
non-residential products, our geographic and custativersity, and the financial and operationaligbive have to expand our
business and obtain market share.

. Superior customer service. We believe that our high level of customer serénd support differentiates us from our
competitors. We employ experienced salespeoplepande advice and assistance in properly idemgyproducts for various
applications. We also provide services such asaaddimely job site delivery, logistical supportdamarketing assistance. We
believe that the services provided by our employ@gsove our customers' efficiency and profitagilithich, in turn,
strengthens our customer relationships.




. Strong platform for growth and acquisition.  Since 1997, we have consistently increased revahtates well in excess of t
growth in the overall roofing materials distributiondustry. We have expanded our business througtegic acquisitions, new
branch openings, branch acquisitions and the dfieson of our product offering. We have succedigfacquired companies
and, for most of them, improved their financial apérating performance after acquisition.

. Sophisticated I T platform.  All of our locations, except for one fabricatiorcility, operate on the same managerr
information systems. We have made a significanéstiment in our information systems, which we beiave among the most
advanced in the roofing distribution industry. Thieystems provide us with a consistent platforrosscall of our operations tt
helps us achieve additional cost reductions, gresterating efficiencies, improved purchasing, ipdcand inventory
management and a higher level of customer ser@ioe systems have substantial capacity to handléubure growth without
requiring significant additional investment.

. I ndustry-leading management team.  We believe that our key personnel, including bramzimagers, are among the most
experienced in the roofing industry. Our executificers, regional vice presidents and branch marsbave an average of o
11 years of roofing industry experience.

. Extensive product offering and strong supplier relationships.  We have a product offering of up to 10,000 SKUpresenting
an extensive assortment of high-quality brandedycts. We believe that our extensive product aiffghas been a significant
factor in attracting and retaining many of our ons¢rs. Because of our significant scale, produpegise and reputation in the
markets that we serve, we have established stiesigot the major residential roofing materials nfanturers and are able to
achieve substantial volume discounts.

Growth Strategies

Our objective is to become the preferrgupdiar of roofing and other exterior building pradumaterials in the U.S. and Canadian markets
while continuing to increase our revenue base aaximize our profitability. We plan to attain thegeals by executing the following strateg

. Expand geographically through new branch openings.  Significant opportunities exist to expand our gegdpic focus by
opening additional branches in existing or contiggicegions. Since 1997, we and our acquired corapdrave successfully
entered numerous markets through greenfield expan€iur strategy with respect to greenfield oppdties is to open branches
within: (1) our existing markets; (2) where exigtioustomers have expanded into new regions; arid é¥as that have limited
or no acquisition candidates that are a good fit wur business model. At times, we have acquineaiglistributors with one to
three branches to fill in existing regions.

. Pursue acquisitions of regional market-leading roofing materials distributors. ~ Acquisitions are an important component of
our growth strategy. We believe that there areiggmt opportunities to grow our business throdggtiplined, strategic
acquisitions. With only a few large, well-capitad competitors in the industry, we believe we camtiaue to build on our
distribution platform by successfully acquiring &dixhal roofing materials distributors. Between 8%nhd 2007, we successfully
integrated seventeen strategic and complementauyisatons.

. Expand product and service offerings. We believe that continuing to increase the breaéithur product line and customer
services are effective methods of increasing galesrrent customers and attracting new custonvéeswork closely with
customers and suppliers to identify new buildingduarcts and services, including windows, siding,esmatoofing systems,
insulation and metal fabrication. In addition, wedibve we can expand our business by introduciodymts
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that we currently offer in certain of our existintarkets into some of our other markets. In parlicule believe that we can
expand nonresidential roofing sales in certainusfacquired markets that currently sell mostlydestial products.

Products and services

Products

The ability to provide a broad range ofduoats is essential in roofing materials distribntigVe carry one of the most extensive arrays of
high-quality branded products in the industry, dimgbus to deliver products to our customers oimeely basis. We are able to fulfill
approximately 95% of our orders through our in-ktmwentory as a result of the breadth and depttuofinventory at our branches. Our
product portfolio includes residential and non-tlesitial roofing products as well as complementarijding products such as siding, windows
and specialty lumber products. Our product linesdasigned to primarily meet the requirements difi besidential and non-residential roofing

contractors.

Product Portfolio

Complementary building products

Residential Non-residential

roofing products roofing products Siding Windows/Doors
Asphalt shingles Single-ply roofing Vinyl siding Vinyl windows
Synthetic slate and tile Asphalt Red, white and yellow Aluminum windows
Clay tile Metal cedar siding Wood windows
Concrete tile Modified bitumen Fiber cement siding Turn-key windows
Slate Built-up roofing Soffits Doors

Nail base insulatio

Metal roofing

Felt

Wood shingles and
shakes

Nails and fastenel

Prefabricated flashings

Ridges and soffit vents

Gutters and
downspouts

Other accessories

Cements and coatings

Insulation—flat stock
and tapered

Commercial fasteners

Metal edges and
flashings

Skylights, smoke vents
and roof hatches

Sheet metal, including
copper, aluminum

and steel
Other accessories

House wraps and
vapor barriers

Other

Waterproofing systems
Building insulation

Air barrier systems
Gypsum

Specialty Lumber

Redwood

Red cedar decking
Mahogany decking
Pressure treated lumber
Fire treated plywood
Synthetic decking

PVC trim boards
Millwork

Custom millwork

The products that we distribute are supgbie the industry's leading manufacturers of highliy roofing materials and related products,

such as Alcoa, Carlisle, Certainteed, EMCO, Finest@AF/Elk Materials, Johns Manville, Owens Cognifiamko, and Revere Copper.

In the residential market, asphalt shingl@sprise the largest share of the products we\llbelieve that we have also developed a
specialty niche in the residential roofing markgtistributing products such as highd shingles, copper gutters and metal roofing ymrts] as
well as specialty lumber products for residentjglecations, including redwood, white and red ceslaingles, red cedar siding, and mahogany
and red cedar decking. Additionally, we distribgteters, downspouts, tools, nails, vinyl sidingngéews, decking and related exterior shelter
products to meet the needs of our residential ngofustomers.




In the non-residential market, single-pipfing systems comprise the largest share of cagtymts. Our single-ply roofing systems consist
primarily of Ethylene Propylene Diene Monomer ($yatic rubber), or EPDM, and thermoplastic, or TR&fing materials and related
components. In addition to the broad range of simdy roofing components, we sell the insulatioattis required as part of most non-
residential roofing applications. Our insulatiogucts include tapered insulation, which has bekiglagrowth product line. Our remaining
non-residential products include metal roofing 8adhings, fasteners, fabrics, coatings, roof dramodified bitumen, built-up roofing and
asphalt.

Services

We emphasize service to our customers. Waay a knowledgeable staff of in-house salespedple sales personnel possess in-depth
technical knowledge of roofing materials and amilans and are capable of providing advice andgstssie to contractors throughout the
construction process. In particular, we supportaustomers with the following value-added services:

. advice and assistance throughout the constructimeegs, including product identification, specifica and technical support;
. job site delivery, rooftop loading and logisticakgices;
. tapered insulation design and layout services;
. metal fabrication and related metal roofing desigd layout services;
. trade credit; an
. marketing support, including project leads for caotors.
Customers

Our diverse customer base consists of rinane 40,000 contractors, home builders, building@ss, and other resellers primarily in the
Southeast, Northeast, Central Plains, Midwest, [8eest and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United Stageswell as in Eastern Canada. Our
typical customer varies by end market, with reklivsmall contractors in the residential market amll to large-sized contractors in the non-
residential market. To a lesser extent, our custdrase includes general contractors, retailersoaiiding materials suppliers.

As evidenced by the fact that a significamtber of our customers have relied on us or ceslgressors as their vendor of choice for
decades, we believe that we have strong custoraioreships that our competitors cannot easily ldisp or replicate. No single customer
accounts for more than 0.5% of our revenues.

Sales and marketing
Sales strategy

Our sales strategy is to provide a comprsive array of high-quality products and superiaue-added services to residential and non-
residential roofing contractors reliably, accuratahd on time. We fulfill approximately 95% of owarehouse orders through our in-stock
inventory as a result of the breadth and depttuoiroventory at our local branches. We believe thatfocus on providing superior valagder
services and our ability to fulfill orders acculgtand rapidly enables us to attract and retaincouers.
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Sales organization

We have attracted and retained an expexibnaales force of more than 1,000 people who aporesible for generating revenue at the |
branch level. The expertise of our salespeopleshedfto increase sales to existing customers ahded customers.

Each of our branches is headed by a braratager, who also functions as the branch's saleager. In addition, each branch generally
employs up to four outside direct salespeople antbdive inside salespeople who report to thesmoh manager. Branches that focus on the
residential market typically staff larger numbef®otside salespeople.

The primary responsibilities of our outsgidespeople are to prospect for new customerfnarease sales to existing customers. Our
outside salespeople accomplish these objectivesvigwing information from construction reports asttier industry news services in search
of attractive construction projects in their loozdrkets that are up for bids from contractors. Gmcenstruction project is identified, our
outside salespeople contact potential customeaa effort to solicit their interest in participaginvith us in the project. By seeking a contractor
to "partner" with on a bid, we increase the likebll that the contractor will purchase their roofingterials and related products from us in the
event that the contractor is selected for the gtoje

To complement our outside sales force, aeelbuilt a strong and technically proficient iresghles staff. Our inside sales force is
responsible for fielding incoming orders, providipgcing quotations and responding to customeriiegl Our inside sales force provides v
product expertise to our customers.

In addition to our outside and inside séteses, we represent certain manufacturers fdiquéar manufacturers' products. Currently, we
have developed relationships with Carlisle, JohasWlle, Owens Corning, Soprema and Firestone snbidsis. We currently employ 20
representatives who act as liaisons (on behalfafgrty owners, architects, specifiers and constdjdbetween these roofing materials
manufacturers and professional contractors.

Marketing

In order to capitalize on the local customaationships that we have established and biefnefin the brands developed by our regional
branches, we have maintained the trade names dfahthee businesses that we have acquired. Thade trames—Alabama Roofing Supply,
Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Company, Beacon Ealegpany, Best Distributing, Coastal Metals, Desl€hoice, Forest, GLACO, Grou
Bedard, JGA Corp., Lafayette Woodworks, North Céamtnmercial Roofing Systems, Mississippi Roofingg@y, Pacific Supply, Quality
Roofing Supply, Roof Depot, Roofing and Sheet Mefalulsa, Shelter Distribution, Southern Roof @nThe Roof Center, West End
Lumber and Wholesale Roofing Supply—are well-knawthe local markets in which the respective brasctompete and are associated with
the provision of high-quality products and customenvice.

As a supplement to the efforts of our sébese, each of our branches communicates witldeesial and non-residential contractors in
their local markets through newsletters, directlraad the Internet. In order to build and strengttedationships with customers and vendors,
we sponsor and promote our own regional trade shahigh feature general business and roofing semsifte our customers and product
demonstrations by our vendors. In addition, wenatteumerous industry trade shows throughout thiemegn which we compete, and we are
an active member of the National Roofing Contractgsociation, as well as regional contractorgeiations.

Purchasing and suppliers

Our status as a leader in our core geograpéarkets, as well as our reputation in the ingustas allowed us to forge strong relationships
with numerous manufacturers of roofing materiald an




related products, including Alcoa, Carlisle, Certaed, Firestone, GAF/Elk Materials, Johns Manyi&ens Corning, Soprema and Tamko.

We are viewed by our suppliers as a ketyidigor due to our industry expertise, significamrket share in our core geographic markets
and the substantial volume of products that weilligie. We have significant relationships with mtran 50 suppliers and maintain multiple
supplier relationships for each product line.

We manage the procurement of products girmur headquarters for the vast majority of thedpcts that we distribute. We believe this
enables us to purchase products more economitallyrmost of our competitors. Product is shippedatly by the manufacturers to our
branches or customers.

Operations
Facilities

Our network of 178 branches serves metitggpareas in 34 states and three Canadian praxiites network has enabled us to
effectively and efficiently serve a broad custormnase and to achieve a leading market positionéh e&our core geographic markets.

Operations

Our branch-based model provides each locatith a significant amount of autonomy to openathin the parameters of our overall
business model. Operations at each branch areetdito meet the local needs of their customersebaipg on market needs, branches carry
from about 1,000 to 10,000 SKUs.

Branch managers are responsible for sptesng and staffing activities, and have full optonal control of customer service and
deliveries. We provide our branch managers withifigant incentives that allow them to share in phefitability of their respective branches
as well as the company as a whole. Personnel atosporate operations assist the branches witthpsiag, procurement, credit services,
information systems support, contract managemengunting and legal services, benefits adminigirasind sales and use tax services.

Distribution/fulfillment process

Our distribution/fulfillment process is figited upon receiving a request for a contractojater or direct product order from a contractor.
Under a contract job order, a contractor typicaediguests roofing or other construction materiats technical support services. The contractor
discusses the project's requirements with a salespand the salesperson provides a price quotiatidhe package of products and services.
Subsequently, the salesperson processes the owi@readeliver the products to the customer's jth si

Fleet

Our distribution infrastructure supportsrethan 700,000 deliveries annually. To accompligh, we maintain a dedicated owned fleet of
648 straight trucks, 238 tractors and 425 traildesarly all of our delivery vehicles are equippeithvepecialized equipment, including 651
truck-mounted forklifts, cranes, hydraulic boomsl @onveyors, which are necessary to deliver pradectooftop job sites in an efficient and
safe manner.

Our branches focus on providing materialsustomers who are located within a two-hour raditheir respective facilities. We make
deliveries five days per week.




Management information systems

We have fully integrated management infdiomasystems. Our systems are consistently impléedesicross our branches and acquired
businesses are promptly moved to our system fotigwicquisition. Our systems support every majariral operational function, except
payroll, providing complete integration of purch&gireceiving, order processing, shipping, inventoanagement, sales analysis and
accounting. The same databases are shared withgytitem, allowing our branches to easily acquioeyrcts from other branches or schedule
deliveries by other branches, greatly enhancingcagtomer service. Our system also has a sopheigaicing matrix which allows us to
refine pricing by region, branch, type of custonoeistomer, or even a specific customer projecadadition, our system allows us to monitor
branch and regional performance centrally. We leaveralized many functions to leverage our sizelpising accounts payable, insurance,
employee benefits, vendor relations, and banking.

All of our branches are connected to ouMIBS400 computer network by secure Internet coriaestor private data lines. We maintain a
second IBM AS400 as a disaster recovery systemirdodnation is backed up to this system througheadh business day. We have the
capability of electronically switching our domestigerations to the disaster recovery system.

We have created a financial reporting pgekihat allows us to send branches information taeyuse to compare branch by branch
financial performance, which we believe is esséii@perating each branch efficiently and mordfipably. We have also developed a
benchmarking report which enables us to comparef @lur branches' performance in 12 critical areas.

We can place purchase orders electronigatly some of our major vendors. The vendors thansmit their invoices electronically to us.
Our system automatically matches these invoices thi related purchase orders and schedules payApproximately 40% of our inventory
purchases are processed electronically. We haveatbeility to handle customer processing electallyi, although most customers prefer
ordering through our sales force.

Government regulations

We are subject to regulation by variousfed| state, provincial and local agencies. Thgemeaies include the Environmental Protection
Agency, Department of Transportation, Interstaten@@rce Commission, Occupational Safety and HeattmiAistration and Department of
Labor and Equal Employment Opportunity Commissiéie. believe we are in compliance in all materiapeeds with existing applicable
statutes and regulations affecting environmentalés and our employment, workplace health and viackpsafety practices.

Competition

Although we are among the three largestimganaterials distributors in the United Stated &anada, the U.S. roofing supply industry is
highly competitive. The vast majority of our comigieh comes from local and regional roofing supgistributors, and, to a much lesser ext
other building supply distributors and "big boxtaiers. Among distributors, we compete againshalsnumber of large distributors and m:
small, local, privately-owned distributors. Thermipal competitive factors in our business inclualg, are not limited to, the availability of
materials and supplies; technical product knowlemigd expertise; advisory or other service capa@slitpricing of products; and availability of
credit. We generally compete on the basis of traityuof our services, product quality, and, teeader extent, price. We compete not only for
customers within the roofing supply industry bigcefor personnel.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2007, we had 2,708 eyels, consisting of 765 in sales and marketing,i24éranch management, including
supervisors, 1,345 warehouse workers, helpers awvers, and 351 general and administrative perdonne

We believe that our employee relationsgared. Twenty-one of our employees are currentlyesgnted by a labor union and covered by a
collective bargaining agreement.

Order Backlog
Order backlog is not a material aspectwfliusiness and no material portion of our busimessabject to government contracts.
Seasonality

In general, sales and net income are highegnhg our first, third and fourth fiscal quagewnhich represent the peak months of
construction, especially in our branches in theheastern U.S. and in Canada. Our sales are stibyalower during the second quarter,
when we usually incur net losses. These quartkrtyifations have diminished as we have diversifi¢a the southern regions of the United
States.

Geographic Data

For geographic data about our businesaspleee Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial i8&tts included elsewhere in this FormKLO-

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks and undeti@s described below and other information ina@ddn this Form 10-K in evaluating
us and our business. If any of the events deschi&ulv occur, our business and financial resultsldde adversely affected in a material w
This could cause the trading price of our commaisto decline, perhaps significantly.

We may not be able to effectively integrate newly acquired businesses into our operations or achieve expected profitability from our
acquisitions.

Our growth strategy includes acquiring ottistributors of roofing materials and complemepfaroducts. Acquisitions involve numerous
risks, including:

. unforeseen difficulties in integrating operatiotesshnologies, services, accounting and perso

. diversion of financial and management resources &gisting operations;

. unforeseen difficulties related to entering geopiepegions where we do not have prior experience;
. potential loss of key employee

. unforeseen liabilities associated with businessgsieed; and

. inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaeguisition or investment costs.

As a result, if we fail to evaluate and @xe acquisitions properly, we might not achievedhticipated benefits of these acquisitions, and
we may incur costs in excess of what we anticipBese risks may be greater in the case of lamgggrisitions.
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We may not be able to successfully identify acquisition candidates, which would slow our growth rate.

We continually seek additional acquisitzamdidates in selected markets and from time te #mgage in exploratory discussions with
potential candidates. If we are not successfuhidifig attractive acquisition candidates that we aequire on satisfactory terms, or if we
cannot complete acquisitions that we identifysitinlikely that we will sustain the historical grilwates of our business.

An inability to obtain the products that we distribute could result in lost revenues and reduced margins and damage relationships with
customers.

We distribute roofing and other exterioilting materials that are manufactured by a nunabenajor suppliers. Although we believe that
our relationships with our suppliers are strong tirad we would have access to similar products fcompeting suppliers should products be
unavailable from current sources, any disruptioaunsources of supply, particularly of the moshamonly sold items, could result in a loss of
revenues and reduced margins and damage relafisnsith customers. Supply shortages may occurrasudt of unanticipated demand or
production or delivery difficulties. When shortagesur, roofing material suppliers often allocateducts among distributors.

Loss of key personnel or our inability to attract and retain new qualified personnel could hurt our ability to operate and grow successfully.

Our future success is highly dependent uperservices of Robert Buck, Chief Executive Qffiand Chairman of the Board, Paul
Isabella, President and Chief Operating Officed Bavid Grace, Chief Financial Officer. Our succesiscontinue to depend to a significant
extent on our executive officers and key managemersonnel, including our regional vice presidews. do not have key man life insurance
covering any of our executive officers. We may b@table to retain our executive officers and keg@enel or attract additional qualified
management. The loss of any of our executive aBice other key management personnel, or our iitabd recruit and retain qualified
personnel, could hurt our ability to operate andeniadifficult to execute our acquisition and irtal growth strategies.

A changein vendor rebates could adversely affect our income and gross margins.

The terms on which we purchase product fneamy of our vendors entitle us to receive a rebated on the volume of our purchases.
These rebates effectively reduce our costs forymtsd If market conditions change, vendors may emhlg change the terms of some or all of
these programs. Although these changes would fexttahe net recorded costs of product alreadyhasged, it may lower our gross marging
products we sell or income we realize in futurdqus.

Cyclicality in our business could result in lower revenues and reduced profitability.

We sell a portion of our products for nesidential and non-residential construction. Thergfth of these markets depends on new
housing starts and business investment, which arecion of many factors beyond our control, imhg interest rates, employment levels,
availability of credit and consumer confidence. Ddéuvns in the regions and markets we serve cosldtrégn lower revenues and, since many
of our expenses are fixed, lower profitability. Neausing starts declined during 2006 and 2007 heg#ace may continue at the lower levels
or decline further and commercial construction\aistj which has been high in recent years, couldide as well.

Seasonality in the construction and re-roofing industry generally resultsin second quarter losses.

Our second quarter is typically adversélgaed by winter construction cycles and weattedtgwns in colder climates as the level of
activity in the new construction and reefing markets decreases. Because many of ounsgpagemain relatively fixed throughout the year
generally record a loss during our second quafterexpect that these seasonal variations will ooetin the future.
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If we encounter difficulties with our management information systems, we could experience problems with inventory, collections, customer
service, cost control and business plan execution.

We believe our management information systare a competitive advantage in maintaining eadérship position in the roofing
distribution industry. If we experience problemshwour management information systems, we couleégepce, among other things, product
shortages and/or an increase in accounts receivatyefailure by us to properly maintain our manegat information systems could
adversely impact our ability to attract and servstemers and could cause us to incur higher opgratists and experience delays in the
execution of our business plan.

An impairment of goodwill and/or other intangible assets could reduce net income.

Acquisitions frequently result in the redimg of goodwill and other intangible assets. Apteenber 30, 2007, goodwill represented
approximately 35% of our total assets. Goodwiliéslonger amortized for financial reporting purpeos®d is subject to impairment testing at
least annually using a fair-value based approabh.identification and measurement of goodwill innpegnt involves the estimation of the fair
value of our single reporting unit. Our accountiagimpairment contains uncertainty because managémust use judgment in determining
appropriate assumptions to be used in the measuoterhair value. We determine fair value using arket approach to value our business.

We evaluate the recoverability of gooddidll impairment in between our annual tests whemsver changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of goodwill may not beoegrable. Any impairment of goodwill will reducetriscome in the period in which the
impairment is recognized.

We might need to raise additional capital, which may not be available, thus limiting our growth prospects.

We may require additional equity or furtkebt financing in order to consummate an acqaisitir for additional working capital for
expansion or if we suffer losses. In the eventtamithl equity or debt financing is unavailable & we may be unable to expand or make
acquisitions and our stock price may decline assalt of the perception that we have more limitegh prospects.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease 181 facilities, including our hgaarters and other support facilities, throughbetWnited States and Eastern Canada. These
leased facilities range in size from 2,000 squeet fo 138,716 square feet. We have sublet twétfasi In addition, we own twelve
sales/warehouse facilities located in Manchestery Nampshire; Reading, Pennsylvania; Montreal, @o€B); Sainte-Foy, Quebec; Delson,
Quebec; Salisbury, Maryland; Hartford, Connecti€ranston, Rhode Island; Lancaster, Pennsylvaaéksonville, Florida and Easton,
Maryland. These owned facilities range in size frblyb00 square feet to 48,900 square feet. Ahefawned facilities are mortgaged to our
senior lenders. We believe that our propertiesragood operating condition and adequately servecotrent business operations.
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As of November 15, 2007, our 178 branches 16 other facilities, including one branch in Néevsey that was not yet opened at
September 30, 2007, were located in the followiages and provinces:

Number of
State Branches Other

Alabama

Arkansas

California

Connecticu

Delaware

Florida

Georgia

Illinois

Indiana

lowa

Kansas

Kentucky

Louisiana

Maine

Maryland 1
Massachuseti

Michigan

Minnesota

Mississippi

Missouri

Nebraske

New Hampshire

New Jerse! 1
New York
North Caroling
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvanii
Rhode Islanc
South Carolin:
Tennesse
Texas
Vermont
Virginia

West Virginia

RPwWwoNNRMODMRERPPRROBRRRPONNDNDNNREDIMD

=

[E=Y

N
NORFRORRWFRWONRARE

Subtota—U.S.

[y
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Canadian Provinces

Manitoba 1
Ontario 4
Quebec 4 1

Subtota—Canada 9 1

Total 17¢ 15

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in lawsdhat are brought against us in the normal aofdusiness. We are not currently a party to
any legal proceedings that would be expected, ritttdvidually or in the aggregate, to have a matexdverse effect on our business or
financial condition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote ofsmaurity holders during the fourth quarter of tearyended September 30, 20
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Gl&sect Market under the symbol "BECN". The follag/ table lists quarterly
information on the price range of our common stbaked on the high and low reported sale pricesdfocommon stock as reported by
NASDAQ for the periods indicated below, adjustedtfe June 2006 thr-for-two stock split.

High Low

Year ended September 30, 200t

First quarte! $ 22.1¢ $ 17.07

Second quarte $ 27.6: $ 18.5¢

Third quarte! $ 28.97 $ 20.2¢

Fourth quarte $ 22.7:  $ 16.0(
Year ended September 30, 2007:

First quarte! $ 24.1¢ $ 18.6f

Second quarte $ 21.5C $ 14.9i

Third quarte! $ 18.8¢ $ 15.5¢

Fourth quarte $ 1712 $ 9.6

There were 32 holders of record of our camrstock as of November 15, 2007.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and fiiated Purchasers

No purchases of our equity securities weagle by us or any affiliated entity during the tbuguarter of the year ended September 30,
2007.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our comsatock and do not anticipate paying dividendh@foreseeable future. Our board of
directors currently intends to retain any futuren@a&s for reinvestment in our business. Our rewmg\credit facilities currently prohibit the
payment of dividends without the prior written censof our lender. Any future determination to pliyidends will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will be dependent upon esults of operations and cash flows, our finangiglition and capital requirements, general
business conditions, legal, tax, regulatory andamtractual restrictions on the payment of diviterand any other factors our board of
directors deems relevant.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulatotal shareholder return (including reinvestmdrdividends) of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s common stock based on its markeepribeginning with the date our stock first tradad each fiscal year thereafter, with (i) the
Nasdaq Index and (ii) the S&P 1500 Building Produntiex.
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—#—>Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. —— Masdag Index = = == 5&P 1500 Building Products Index

The line graph assumes that $100 was investedrinaumon stock, the Nasdaq Index and the S&P 1506/@iBg Products Index on
September 23, 2004. The closing price of our comstock on September 30, 2007 was $10.22. The giao& performance of Beacon

Roofing Supply, Inc.'s common stock depicted indhegph above represents past performance onlysamat inecessarily indicative of future
performance.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the following selected ficial information together with our financial statents and related notes and "Management's
discussion and analysis of financial condition eesllts of operations” also included in this Foi@rKL We have derived the statement of
operations data for the years ended SeptembelO8J, September 30, 2006, and September 24, 2085harbalance sheet information at
September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006, frorauglited financial statements included in this FAO¥K. We have derived the statements
of operations data for the years ended Septemh&@0®8 and September 27, 2003, and the balanceddiaeat September 24, 2005,
September 25, 2004 and September 27, 2003, frorawrlited financial statements not included in Fosm 10-K. Certain prior-year amounts
have been reclassified to conform to the curreat peesentation.
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Fiscal year ended
September 30,
) September 30, 2006 September 24, September 25, September 27,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2007 (53 weeks) 2005 2004 2003
Statement of operations data

Net sales $ 1,645,78" $ 1,500,63 $ 850,92¢ $ 652,90¢ $ 559,54(

Cost of products sol 1,271,86! 1,136,501 643,73 487,20( 418,66:

Gross profil 373,91 364,13 207,19 165,70¢ 140,87¢

Operating expenses (includes
stock-based compensation
expense of $4,983, $3,222, $69
and $10,299 for the years ende:
2007, 2006, 2005, and 20



respectively’ 304,10¢ 263,83t 146,47¢ 131,03° 109,58¢
Income from operatior 69,80¢ 100,30: 60,71¢ 34,67: 31,29:
Interest expens (27,439 (19,46)) (4,91)) (11,62)) (14,052
Change in value of warrant
derivatives(1 — — — (24,997 (2,619
Loss on early retirement of dt — — (915) (3,285 —
Income taxe: (17,09%) (31,529 (21,97¢) (10,129 (7,52))
Net income (loss $ 25,27¢ $ 49,31: $ 32917 % (15,359 $ 7,10¢
I I I I I
Net income (loss) per sha
Basic $ 057 $ 11t $ 08: $ (0579 $ 0.27
Diluted $ 0.5€¢ $ 11z % 08C $ 057 $ 0.2¢
Weighted average shares
outstanding
Basic 44,083,91 42,903,27 39,716,93 26,857,80 26,762,96
Diluted 44,971,93 44,044,76 41,118,94 26,857,80 27,345,68
Other financial and operating de
Depreciation and amortizatic  $ 32,86 $ 23,79: $ 8,74¢ $ 6,92: $ 6,047
Capital expenditures (excludi
acquisitions, $ 23,13. % 19,060 $ 10,81 $ 5127 $ 4,97¢
Number of branches at end
period 17¢€ 15E 84 67 65
(1)  The change in value of warrant derivatives represstohanges in the fair market value of certainraras previously issued
connection with debt financings that were redeeore&eptember 28, 2004.
17
September 30, September 30, September 24, September 25, September 27,
(In Thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance sheet dat
Cash and cash equivale! $ 6,46¢ $ 1847 $ — 3 — $ 64
I I I I I
Total asset $ 1,006,66! $ 839,89( $ 386,98 $ 301,49¢ $ 275,70¢
I I I I I
Current debt and warrant
derivative liability:
Cash overdraf $ — 3 — 3 6,107 $ 3,69¢ $ —
Warrant derivative liabilitie — — — 34,33t 3,68:
Borrowings under revolving
lines of credit, current portion
of long-term debt and other
obligations 34,77 6,657 6,34¢ 50,74« 69,03:
$ 34,770 $ 6,651 $ 12,458 % 88,77. $ 72,71«
I I I I I
Long-term debt, net of current
portions:
Borrowings under revolving
lines of credit $ — 8 229,75. $ 63,76¢ $ — 8 —
Senior notes payable and oth
obligations 343,00( 69,28: 20,15¢ 22,66( 14¢
Junior subordinated not
payable — — — 17,07: 35,17:
Subordinated notes payable
related parties and notes
payable to stockholde — — — 29,44: 27,08’



Other lon¢-term obligations

Warrant derivative liabilities long
term

Stockholders' equit

31,27( 10,61( 1,66¢ 97¢ 497
$ 374,27 $ 309,64: $ 85,59! $ 70,14¢ $ 62,90:
[

1%
|

$ 323,85(

©»
|

$ 291,16¢

$ —
I
$ 178,74!

$ —
$ 38,24

&

8,24:

&

41,76¢




ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our consolidated financial statements aelkhted notes and other financial
information appearing elsewhere in this Form 10kKaddition to historical information, the followgndiscussion and other parts of this
Form 1(-K contain forward-looking information that involveisks and uncertainties. Our actual results cadiffier materially from those
anticipated by this forward-looking information dteethe factors discussed under "Risk factors, "rifard-looking statements” and elsewhere
in this Form 10-K. Certain tabular information witlot foot due to rounding.

Overview

We are one of the largest distributorsesidential and non-residential roofing materialthie United States and Canada. We are also a
distributor of other building materials, includisgling, windows, specialty lumber products and watmfing systems for residential and
nonresidential building exteriors. We purchase potsl from a large number of manufacturers and themnibute these goods to a customer
consisting of contractors and, to a lesser extgnteral contractors, retailers and building maltetiapliers.

We carry up to 10,000 SKUs through 178 bhas in the United States and Canada. In fiscal3@@y7, approximately 94% of our net
sales were in the United States. We stock oneeoifitbst extensive assortments of high-quality brdmaeducts in the industry, enabling us to
deliver products to our customers on a timely basis

Execution of the operating plan at eacbwfbranches drives our financial results. Revemmesmpacted by the relative strength of the
residential and non-residential roofing marketsserve. We allow each of our branches to developwts marketing plan and mix of products
based upon its local market. We differentiate duesefrom the competition by providing customensegs, including job site delivery, tapered
insulation layouts and design and metal fabricatan by providing credit. We consider customeaitiehs and our employees' knowledge of
roofing and exterior building materials to be imiaait to our ability to increase customer loyaltyl amaintain customer satisfaction. We invest
significant resources in training our employeesdrles techniques, management skills and produetliedge. While we consider these
attributes important drivers of our business, wetiowally pay close attention to controlling opérgtcosts.

Our growth strategy includes both intemgrawth (opening new branches, growing sales witktieg customers, adding new customers
and introducing new products) and acquisition ghov@ur main acquisition strategy is to target makkaders in geographic areas that we
presently do not serve. Our April 2007 acquisitidMNorth Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, Inacigaample of this approach. North C¢
is a leading distributor of commercial roofing ®ret and related accessories, based in Twinsbuig, ®ith 16 locations in Ohio, lllinois,
Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan, New York, Pennsylvaarad West Virginia at the time of the acquisitid®here was minimal branch overlap w
our existing operations. We also have acquiredlsmedmpanies to supplement branch openings withiaxisting region. Our May 2007
acquisition of Wholesale Roofing Supply ("WRS"siagle location distributor of residential and coargial roofing products located in
Knoxville, Tennessee, which we integrated into Bast Distributing region in the Carolinas, is ammple of such an acquisition.
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General

We sell all materials necessary to instajplace and repair residential and non-residerdizfs, including:

. shingles;

. single-ply roofing;

. metal roofing and accessori

. modified bitumen

. built up roofing;

. insulation;

. slate and tile

. fasteners, coatings and cements;
. other roofing accessories.

We also sell complementary building produsich as:

. vinyl siding;

. doors, windows and millwork

. wood and fiber cement siding;
. residential insulation; and

. waterproofing system:

The following is a summary of our net sddggproduct group for the last three full fiscabys

Year Ended
September 30, 200° September 30, 200! September 24, 200!
Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix
Residential roofing produc $ 699,27¢ 4125% $ 731,70: 48.¢% $ 346,29 40.7%
Non-residential roofing produci 591,90! 36.(% 448,04 29.9% 305,60« 35.%
Complementary building produc 354,60: 21.5% 320,89: 21.%% 199,03: 23.2%

$ 1,645,78! 100.(% $ 1,500,63 100.(%$ 850,92t 100.(%

We have over 40,000 customers, none oftwrépresents more than 0.5% of our net sales. M&oyr customers are small to mid-size
contractors with relatively limited capital resoesc We maintain strict credit approval and revi@hgees, which in the past has helped to keep
losses from customer receivables within our expiecta. For the past seven years, bad debts havagadapproximately 0.3% of net sales.

Our expenses consist primarily of the @dgiroducts purchased for resale, labor, fleetupaocy, and selling and administrative expel
We compete for business and may respond to corivegpitessures by lowering prices in order to mantair market share.

In September 2007, we amended our by-lavehidnge our year-end date to September 30 offesaeth year. Prior to that amendment, we
used &2/ saweek fiscal year ending on the last Saturday ot&gper. Our fiscal years ended September 24, 2008%") and September 30,
2007 ("2007") contained 52 weeks, while the figedr ended September 30, 2006 ("2006") containesegks.
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Since 1997, we have made seventeen sttaadicomplementary acquisitions and opened 32bmamches. We opened six branches each
in 2005 and 2006, and eight in 2007. When we opeevabranch, we transfer a certain level of exishnsiness from an existing branch to the
new branch. This allows the new branch to commerittea base business and also allows the existiagdh to target other growth
opportunities.

In managing our business, we considerrallvth, including the opening of new branches, tariternal growth unless it is a result of an
acquisition. In our management's discussion antysisaof financial condition and results of opeoas, when we refer to growth in existing
markets, we include growth from existing and newfened branches but exclude growth from acquiraddbres until they have been under
our ownership for at least four full fiscal quaget the start of the reporting period. Our avermgeual internal sales growth over the three
fiscal years since our IPO was 8.1%.

Results of operations
The following discussion compares our rssaf operations for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The following table shows, for the peridgadicated, information derived from our consolidhttatements of operations expressed as a
percentage of net sales for the period presengrdeRtages may not foot due to rounding.

Year ended
September 30, September 30, September 24,
2007 2006 2005

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of products sol 77.2 75.7 75.7

Gross margit 22.1 24.¢ 24.:
Operating expenst 18.5 17.€ 17.2
Income from operation 4.2 6.7 7.1
Interest expens 1.7 (1.3 (0.€)
Loss on early retirement of de — — (0.3)
Income before income tax 2.6 5.4 6.5
Income taxe: (1.0 (2.2) (2.6)
Net income 1.5% 3.2% 3.¢%

2007 compared to 2006

The following table shows a summary of msults of operations for 2007 and 2006, brokenrdbwexisting markets and acquired
markets.
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For the Fiscal Years Ended

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

(in thousands)

Net sales $ 970,45 $ 1,019,851 $ 675,32t $ 480,77¢ $ 1,645,78! $ 1,500,63
Gross profil 227,27: 247,13 146,64: 117,00( 373,91 364,13
Gross margit 23.4% 24.2% 21.7% 24.2% 22.1% 24.2%
Operating expenst 157,94¢ 162,20 146,16: 101,63: 304,10¢ 263,83t
Operating expenses as a %

net sale: 16.2% 15.% 21.6% 21.1% 18.5% 17.€%
Operating incomi $ 69,32¢ $ 84,93. $ 48C $ 15,36¢ $ 69,80¢ $ 100,30:
Operating margi 7.1% 8.2% 0.1% 3.2% 4.2% 6.7%
Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $145lbmibr 9.7%, to $1,645.8 million in 2007 from $00.6 million in 2006. Sales from acquired
markets increased $194.5 million, while existingke#s saw internal contraction of $49.4 million,408%. There were four fewer business
days in 2007 as compared to 2006, which we belieoeeased annual existing market sales by approeiynh5%. During 2007, we added 17
branches through acquisitions, opened eight nemchiess and closed two branches. The product grdep &a our existing markets were as
follows:

For the fiscal years ended

Existing Markets

%Change Based
On Average Sales
2007 2006 Change Per Business Day

Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix

(dollars in millions)

Residential roofing produc $ 399. 41.1% $ 435.1 42.1%$ (35.9) -8.2% -6.8%
Non-residential roofing produc 365.7 37.1% 356.1 34.% 9.€ 2.7% 4.2%
Complementary building produc 205.5 21.2% 228. 22.%% (23.2) -10.1% -8.7%

$ 970t 100.% $ 1,019.¢ 100.(% $ (49.9 -4.8% -3.2%

Note: Total 2007 existing market sales of $970.Bioni plus 2007 sales from acquired markets of $87¥8illion equal $1,645.8 million of tot
2007 sales. Our acquired markets had product gsalgs of $300.0, $226.2 and $149.1 million in resighl roofing products, non-residential
roofing products, and complementary building prdduespectively for 2007. Total 2006 existing nedrsales of $1,019.9 million plus 2006
sales from acquired markets of $480.8 million eigb00.6 million of total 2006 sales. We belielve &xisting market information is useful to
investors because it helps explain organic growtthealine.

Our existing market sales were affectedhisyfollowing factors:

. a substantial decline in new residential constamgtespecially in the mid-Atlantic states;

. a significant slowdown in -roofing and reconstruction activities in certaieas of Texas, the Gulf Coast and Southeaster
affected by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita;

. four fewer business days; and

. harsher winter conditions this year in the Nortlhe@anada, and Midwest; partially offset by theifres impact of:
. continued growth in non-residential roofing; and
. six new branches opened in existing markets siepte®ber 30, 200!
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Gross Profit

2007 2006 Change

(dollars in millions)

Gross profil $ 373¢ $ 36471 $ 9.8 2.7%
Existing market: 227.: 247.1 (19.9) -8.C%

Gross margit 22.1% 24.2% -1.€%
Existing market: 23.2% 24.2% -0.8%

In 2007 our existing markets' gross praéitlined 8.0% or $19.8 million compared to 200&pike the six new branches, while acquired
markets' gross profit increased $29.6 million. Bxis markets' gross margin decreased to 23.4% 07 2@m 24.2% in 2006. The existing
market decrease was caused by an increase in dtwgeonditions and generally lower constructiatity. We experienced the highest
margin compression in the markets that experietieedenefit of additional hurricane activity in B8nd in our regions with higher sales mix
of new residential roofing products. Our overalbgs margin has also decreased due primarily teetfamsors and the increase in product mi
traditionally lower gross margin non-residentiabfing products. We expect our future overall gnmesgins to fluctuate from 22% to 25%
depending on our product mix and competitive cirstances.

Operating Expenses

2007 2006 Change

(dollars in millions)

Operating expenst $ 3041 $ 263¢ $ 40.: 15.2%
Existing market: 157.¢ 162.2 4.3 -2.6%
Operating expenses as a % of s, 18.5% 17.€% 0.9%
Existing market: 16.5% 15.9% 0.4%

Our existing markets' operating expensesadsed by 2.6% or $4.3 million in 2007 while acgdimarkets' operating expenses increased
$44.5 million. The acquired markets' 2007 and 26@érating expenses included $13.6 and $8.3 millespectively, for the amortization of
intangible assets recorded under purchase accguiitire existing markets' operating expense deglemedue primarily to reductions in payr
and related costs ($2.9 million), other general athahinistrative expenses ($1.0 million) and selliogts ($0.4 million), which include
transportation costs. These reductions resulted frost-saving measures, improved insurance claxpsreence and from our lower sales
volume and were partially offset by increased wauele expense ($1.3 million), principally from oix sew branches opened in existing
markets since September 30, 2006, and higher daficetand amortization ($1.4 million) resultingmerily from the depreciation of new
transportation equipment. In addition, existing ke#s' general and administrative expenses bendfitkP.7 million from leveraging certain
expenses over a larger base of branches, incladingcquired markets. Total operating costs in 266de approximately $3.6 million
incurred at the new branches, excluding allocatestisc Stock option expense increased $1.8 milkid20i07 from 2006 due to the impact of our
2007 grants.

Existing markets' operating expenses areeptage of net sales increased to 16.3% fron?d,Jpéimarily due to the lower sales and the
relatively fixed structure of our current operatiexpenses. Overall operating expenses increasEgi%66 of net sales in 2007 from 17.6% in
2006, due to the lower sales, higher operating pestentages at Shelter and Pacific, and the infpaotthe additional amortization expense
mentioned above, offset somewhat by a lower opegatdst percentage at North Coast.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $8.0 millio$28.4 million in 2007 from $19.5 million in 2006.&\Vefinanced our credit facilities in
November 2006 and incurred additional borrowingBrtance our acquisitions, both of which increasaddebt level since September
2006. Average interest rates during 2007 also aszd from the prior year, which affected interegie@se on our variable rate-debt.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense decreased to $17.lomiihi 2007 from $31.5 million in 2006. Our 2007exftive income tax rate was 40.3%,
compared to our 2006 effective income tax rate00%. The rate increase was primarily due to tt@62@versal of $1.1 million of previously
accrued income taxes related to previously filedrédurns. We expect our future effective incomertete to fluctuate around 40.0%, depent
primarily upon the results of our operations in &deand in the various states in which we operate.

2006 compared to 2005

The following table shows a summary of msults of operations for 2006 and 2005, brokenrdbwexisting markets and acquired
markets.

For the Fiscal Years Ended

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

(in thousands)

Net sales $ 866,75¢ $ 755,50: $ 633,87t $ 9542¢ $ 1,500,63 $ 850,92
Gross profil 220,25: 191,25! 143,88« 15,94: 364,13 207,19!
Gross margir 25.8% 25.2% 22.1% 16.7% 24.%% 24.2%
Operating expenst 140,00: 133,43t 123,83! 13,03¢ 263,83t 146,47t
Operating expenses as a % of net s 16.1% 17.1% 19.5% 13.7% 17.€% 17.2%
Operating incomi $ 80,25: $ 57,81f $ 20,04¢ $ 2,90 $ 100,30: $ 60,71¢
Operating margi 9.2% 7.7% 3.2% 3.C% 6.7% 7.1%
Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $649libmibr 76.4%, to $1,500.6 million in 2006 from%kB9 million in 2005. Existing markets saw
internal growth of $111.3 million, or 14.7%, whiteir 2006 acquisitions contributed the remainingease. During 2006, we added 65 bran
through acquisitions and opened six new branchesddlition, there were four additional businesssday2006, which boosted annual existing
market sales by approximately 2.3%. Our acquiretkeia increased sales by $538.4 million over 20@5tead overall product group sales of
$378.4, $132.2 and $123.3 million in residentialfing products, non-residential roofing productsd @omplementary building products,
respectively. A portion of the acquired and exigtmarkets' business benefited from

24




the Gulf Coast rebuilding that occurred followingrfdcanes Katrina and Rita. The product group sflesur existing markets were as folloy

2006 2005

Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix Growth

(dollars in millions)

Residential roofing produc $ 353« 40.8% % 292.¢ 38.8% $ 60.5 20.7%
Non-residential roofing produci 315.¢ 36.4% 284.1 37.€% 31.7 11.2
Complementary building produc 197.¢ 22.&% 178.k 23.6% 19.1 10.7

$ 866.¢ 100.% $  755.t 100.% $ 111.: 14.7%

Our existing market growth was due prinyatd the following factors:

. strong residential roofing demand,
. continued penetration into complementary buildingdoicts markets,
. a robust no-residential market, including the impact of large@ increases
. continued home -modeling demanc
. opening of 6 greenfield branches, and
. overall estimated price increases of approximdiétyto 7%.
Gross Profit
2006 2005 Change
(dollars in millions)
Gross profil $ 3641 $ 207z $ 156.¢ 75.1%
Gross margit 24.2% 24.2% —

Our overall gross profit increased $156iBion while our overall gross margin was considtan24.3%. Our existing markets' gross profit
growth of 15.2% contributed $29.0 million to theatiogross profit increase while our acquired masleetcounted for the remaining
$127.9 million of the increase. Existing marketsisg margin was 25.4% in 2006 compared to 25.320@%, due mainly to the increase in
residential roofing sales as a percentage of satigls in existing markets, which generally havééigyross margins than noasidential roofin
sales. Our acquired markets had an overall lonessgmargin than our existing markets in 2006, idiclg some unfavorable physical invent
adjustments, which negatively impacted our oveyalss margin.

Operating Expenses

2006 2005 Change

(dollars in millions)

Operating expenst $ 263¢ $ 1465 $ 117 80.1%
Operating expenses as a % of s, 17.€% 17.2% 0.4%

Operating expenses increased $117.3 midic80.1% to $263.8 million in 2006 from $146.5 lioih in 2005. Our acquired markets
contributed $110.7 million of this increase whilesting markets' operating expenses increasedr$idllién or 4.9%. The existing markets'
operating expense increase was due primarily t@ased payroll and related costs of $7.4 milliard.8%. Much of the increase in payroll
costs was driven by our increased sales volumeaMéehired additional personnel during 2006 tosasgith our substantial growth, including
additional corporate staff and trainees for
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future expansion. We adopted Statement of Finada@ebunting Standards ("SFAS") 123&hare-Based Paymenis,2006 and incurred
$3.2 million in stock-based compensation associai#fistock options as compared to $0.7 millior2005. We experienced a decrease of
$1.4 million in professional fees in 2006, as 20@8uded the costs associated with the implemeniaif Sarbane®xley Section 404. In 20C
we used more internal resources for our Sarb@neésy Section 404 compliance compared to 2005.1adrdebts in existing markets decree
$1.5 million as the quality of our accounts recbleamproved due to the robust roofing market angdroved collection processes and
procedures. Most other expenses increased comnag@suith our existing markets' growth, including #ix new branches.

Operating expenses increased as a pereeotagpt sales to 17.6% in 2006 from 17.2% in 2@®Bnarily due to our acquired markets'
higher operating expenses as a percentage of lest Becluding amortization expense that increaggaroximately $8.5 million. The higher
amortization expense primarily resulted from theoetimation of the intangible assets recorded faued companies' customer relationships.
That impact was partially offset by leveraging euisting markets' fixed costs over increased nessa

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $14.6 milliodl®.5 million in 2006 from $4.9 million in 2005hiE increase was due primarily to the fact-
we financed most of the $336.3 million cost of @006 acquisitions with additional debt, partiallyset by our net equity offering proceeds of
$51.6 million in December 2005. To a lesser extemerest expense also increased due to higheesiteates.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased to $31.5anill 2006 from $22.0 million in 2005. Our 2006eeffive income tax rate was 39.0%,
compared to our 2005 effective income tax rate@®%. The slight rate decrease was primarily dubé®006 reversal of $1.1 million of
previously accrued income taxes related to preWdiled tax returns. We expect our future effeetincome tax rate to fluctuate around 40.
depending primarily upon the results of our operaiin Canada and in the various states in whicbpegate.

Seasonality and quarterly fluctuations

In general, sales and net income are highegng our first, third and fourth fiscal quagewnhich represent the peak months of
construction and re-roofing, especially in our hegstern U.S. and Canada regions. Our sales astastilly lower during the second quarter,
when we usually incur net losses. These quartkrtyifations have diminished as we have diversifi¢al the southern regions of the United
States.

We generally experience an increase ofritvg, accounts receivable and accounts payablaglthre first, third and fourth quarters of 1
year as a result of seasonality. Our borrowingegsly peak during the third quarter, primarily base dated accounts payable offered by
suppliers typically are payable in April, May anth@, while our peak accounts receivable collecttgpgally occur from June through
November

We also usually experience a slowing ofemtions of our accounts receivable during our sdaguarter, mainly due to the inability of our
customers to conduct their businesses effectiveigdlement weather. We continue to attempt toecblthose receivables which require
payment under our standard terms. We do not prasigeconcessions to our customers during this geridhe year to incentivize sales. Also,
during the second quarter, we generally experiencdowest availability under our senior securegddrfacilities, which are based on accounts
receivable.
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Certain quarterly financial data

The following table sets forth certain udi#ed quarterly data for the fiscal years 2007 2006 which, in the opinion of management,
reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal reing adjustments) considered necessary for a faBgntation of this data. Results of any one
or more quarters are not necessarily indicativeesfilts for an entire fiscal year or of continutngnds. Totals may not foot due to rounding.

Fiscal year 2007 Fiscal year 200€
Qtrl Qtr 2 Qtr3 Qtr 4 Qtrl Qtr 2 Qtr3 Qtr 4
(dollars in millions, except per share data
(unaudited)
Net sales $ 380z $ 286 $ 484¢ $ 493.¢& $ 339.¢ $ 32224 $ 4071 $ 431
Gross profil 91.% 66.2 107.¢ 108.2 83.7 77.8 100.: 102.2
Income from operatior 21.1 4.2 26.7 26.8 25.7 12.4 32.t 29.7
Net income (loss $ 8.8 $ 63 $ 118 $ 112 $ 12¢ $ 48 $ 171 $ 14ct
Earnings (loss) per sh—basic $ 020 $ (019 $ 02 $ 026 $ 032z $ 011 $ 03¢ $ 03¢
Earnings (loss) per share—fully
diluted $ 020 $ (019 $ o02¢ $ 028 $ 03C $ 011 $ 03¢ $ 0.3z
Quarterly sales as % of year's s¢ 23.1% 17.2% 29.5% 30.(% 22.6% 21.5% 27.1% 28.8%
Quarterly gross profit as % of year
gross profit 24.5% 17.7% 28.8% 28.¢% 23.(% 21.4% 27.€% 28.1%
Quarterly income from operations
% of year's income from operatio 30.2% -6.1% 38.2% 37.1% 25.6% 12.2% 32.4% 29.6%

Note: Qtr 1 of 2007 had five fewer business daysmared to Qtr. 1 of 2006. We incurred charges tlock-based compensation of
approximately $1.3, $1.3, $1.3 and $1.1 milliorQim 1, Qtr 2, Qtr 3 and Qtr 4 of 2007 compared@®$$0.6, $1.0 and $1.0 million in Qtr 1,
Qtr 2, Qtr 3 and Qtr 4 of 2006. Due to rounding; thily-diluted earnings per share amounts forfthe quarters of 2007 and 2006 do not add
to the annual amount of $0.56 and $1.12 per shespectively.

Impact of inflation

We believe that our results of operatiomsreot materially impacted by moderate changebaeririflation rate. Inflation and changing
prices did not have a material impact on our opamatin 2007, 2006 and 2005, although we did expeg some price increases in our
purchasing costs in 2006 and 2005. In general,ave been able to pass on price increases to otamncess.

Liquidity and capital resources

We had cash and cash equivalents of $a@lBmat September 30, 2007 compared to cash & fillion at September 30, 2006. Our net
working capital was $215.5 million at September 3007 compared to $205.4 million at September 8062

2007 compared to 2006

Our net cash provided by operating actsitivas $63.8 million for 2007 compared to $82.8iomilfor 2006. Our income from operations
decreased to $69.8 million in 2007 from $100.3innillin 2006. Accounts receivable, excluding theefffof acquisitions, increased by
$22.0 million in 2007, due to the seasonal increds¢orth Coast following the April acquisition seét somewhat by decreases in our other
regions. The number of days outstanding for accoreteivable, excluding North Coast, decreasedthlign 2007. Inventory levels, excluding
the effect of acquisitions, decreased by $13.8anildue to the intentional slowing of purchasebedter correlate with the lower sales trend
to enhance our year-end physical inventory proadfset somewhat by the additional inventory aheigew branches. Average inventory per
branch is down about 10% in 2007 as compared 16,200
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with inventory turns, excluding North Coast, cotesig with 2006. In addition to the positive imp&oim decreased inventories, prepaid
expenses and other assets, excluding the effexqpfisitions, decreased by $7.0 million, mainly tutwer levels of vendor rebates, while
accounts payable and accrued expenses, excludirgffdct of acquisitions, declined only $0.1 miflio

Net cash used in investing activities iD2@as $143.3 million compared to $355.3 millior2B06, due primarily to our acquisitions for
which we paid $120.2 and $336.3 million, respedyivilet capital expenditures in 2007 increased 4yl $nillion compared to 2006 due to a
higher number of purchases of new transportati@hvearehouse equipment to service our larger numbleranches.

Net cash provided by financing activitieass$83.7 million in 2007 compared to $280.6 millior2006. The net cash provided by
financing activities in 2007 primarily reflects lbowings under our new term loan to refinance oigrpevolving facilities and term loans and
payment of related deferred financing costs. THecash provided by financing activities in 2006nperily reflected borrowings under our pr
revolving lines of credit and term loans, mostly éoir acquisitions, and the net proceeds from eaosdary stock offering in December 2005.

2006 compared to 2005

Our net cash provided by operating actgitivas $82.8 million for 2006 compared to $6.1iorilfor 2005. Our sales growth drove our
income from operations to $100.3 million in 2006nfr $60.7 million in 2005. Accounts receivable, esdle of the effect of businesses
acquired, increased by $15.6 million in 2006 and.$illion in 2005 due to strong increases insalde number of days outstanding based
upon our sales improved to approximately 51 day2@®6 as compared to 52 days in 2005.

Accounts payable and accrued expensegjsxelof the effects of businesses acquired, isecay $37.6 million in 2006 due primarily
an increase in purchases and slightly longer vepdgment terms. Inventory increased by $9.1 millio8006, mainly due to the opening of
new branches during the year.

Net cash used in investing activities iD@Was $355.3 million compared to $48.5 millior2B05, due primarily to our 2006 acquisitions
that had an aggregate net purchase price of $33idi8n. Net capital expenditures increased to $18illion from $10.8 million as we opened
six new branches in 2006 and continued to purctrassportation and warehouse equipment to servicgmwth and to upgrade and maintain
our fleet of trucks.

Net cash provided by financing activitieass$280.6 million in 2006 compared to $39.9 millior2005. The net cash provided by
financing activities in 2006 reflects borrowingsden our revolving lines of credit, primarily foralacquisitions, and the net proceeds from our
secondary offering in December 2005.

Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity at Septeen 30, 2007 was our cash and cash equivalents.bfrifillion and our available borrowings of
$131.0 million under revolving lines of credit. Cawrrowing base availability is determined primably trade accounts receivable, less
outstanding borrowings. Borrowings outstanding uiritle revolving lines of credit in the accompanybaance sheet at September 30, 2007
were classified as short-term debt since we pdithoke borrowings subsequent to year-end and there current expectation of a minimum
level of outstanding revolver borrowings in fisgalar 2008. We classify as short-term debt the mininmmount expected to be outstanding
during the following twelve months. Borrowings datsding under the revolving lines of credit at &aper 30, 2006 were classified as long-
term debt in accordance with EITF Issue 958&lance Sheet Classification of Borrowings Outstagdinder Revolving Credit Arrangements
that include
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both a Subjective Acceleration Clause and a Lock-Bwangement and SFAS No. 6Short-term Debt Expected to be Refinanced on adong
term Basis.

Liquidity is defined as the current amoahteadily available cash and the ability to geteeequate amounts of cash to meet the curren
needs for cash. We assess our liquidity in termmuoftash and cash equivalents on hand and thitydabijenerate cash to fund our operating
activities, taking into consideration the seasawlre of our business.

Significant factors which could affect frgdiquidity include the following:

. the adequacy of available bank lines of credit;

. the ability to attract long-term capital with séistory terms;
. cash flows generated from operating activit

. acquisitions; an

. capital expenditures.

Our primary capital needs are for workimagital obligations and other general corporate psep, including acquisitions and capital
expenditures. Our primary sources of working capita cash from operations and cash equivalengglsmented by bank borrowings. In the
past, we have financed acquisitions initially trghuncreased bank borrowings, the issuance of camstark and/or other borrowings. We
then repay any such borrowings with cash flows faparations. The November 2006 refinancing of eadit facilities discussed below
provided us with approximately $47 million of addital funds at the time of the closing for futurgaisitions and ongoing working capital
requirements. We have funded our past capital elipees through increased bank borrowings, inclgaiquipment financing, or through
capital leases, and then have reduced these abligatith cash flows from operations.

We believe we have adequate current liggimind availability of capital to fund our preseperations, meet our commitments on our
existing debt and fund anticipated growth, inclgd@xpansion in existing and targeted market akascontinually seek potential acquisitions
and from time to time hold discussions with acdigsi candidates. If suitable acquisition opporti@sitor working capital needs arise that we
require additional financing, we believe that dnahcial position and earnings history providerarsg base for obtaining additional financing
resources at competitive rates and terms, as weihahe past. We may also issue additional siafresmmon stock to raise funds, which we
did in December 2005, or we may issue preferrecksto

Indebtedness

We currently have the following credit f@s:

. a senior secured credit facility in the U.S_;
. a Canadian senior secured credit facility;
. two equipment financing facilitie:

Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On November 2, 2006, we entered into annaiee and restated seven-year $500 million U.Soseeicured credit facility and a
C$15 million senior secured Canadian credit faciith GE Antares Capital ("GE Antares") and a dgate of other lenders (combined, the
"Credit Facility"). The Credit Facility refinancete prior $370 million credit facilities that alseere provided through GE Antares. The Credit
Facility provides us with lower interest rates available funds for future acquisitions and ongoirggking capital requirements. In addition,
the Credit Facility increases the allowable totalipment financing and/or capital lease financm@35 million. The Credit Facility
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provides for a cash receipts lock-box arrangemattdives us sole control over the funds in lbok-accounts, unless excess availability is
than $10 million or an event of default occurswinich case the senior secured lenders would haveght to take control over such funds and
to apply such funds to repayment of the senior.debt

The Credit Facility consists of a U.S. g credit facility of $150 million (the "US ReWweer"), which includes a sub-facility of
$20 million for letters of credit, and an initigB%0 million term loan (the "Term Loan"). The CreBdcility also includes a C$15 million senior
secured revolving credit facility provided by GEn@aa Finance Holding Company (the "Canada RevglvEHere was a combined
$131.0 million available for borrowings and $26.1lion outstanding under the US Revolver and Caaadevolver at September 30, 2007.
There were $6.5 million of outstanding standbyelettof credit at September 30, 2007. The Term legnires amortization of 1% per year,
payable in quarterly installments of approximatgly9 million, and the remainder is due in 2013. Thedit Facility may also be expanded by
up to an additional $200 million under certain ctinds. There are mandatory prepayments under thditdacility under certain conditions,
including the following cash flow condition:

Excess Cash Flo

On May 15 of each fiscal year, commencindgvay 15, 2008, we must pay an amount equal to 8D#le Excess Cash Flow (as defined
in the Credit Facility) for the prior fiscal yearot to exceed $7.0 million with respect to anydisgear. Based on our results for 2007, no
payment will be due next year.

Interest
Interest on borrowings under the U.S. drizdiility is payable at our election at eithertlog following rates:

. the base rate (that is the higher of (a) the batsefor corporate loans quoted in The Wall Streatdal or (b) the Feder
Reserve overnight rate pltig2 of 1%) plus a margin of 0.75% for the Term Loan.

. the current LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 1.00% (#o8. Revolver loans) or 2.00% (for Term Loan).
Interest under the Canadian credit facifitpayable at our election at either of the foilogvrates:

. an index rate (that is the higher of (1) the Caaagirime rate as quoted in The Globe and Mail 2hdhe 30-day BA Rate plus
0.75%), or

. the BA rate as described in the Canadian facilityg 1.00%.

The US Revolver currently carries an interate of LIBOR plus 1% (6.80% at September 30,720while the Canada revolver carries an
interest rate of the Canadian prime rate plus 0.@26% at September 30, 2007), and the Term Laates an interest rate of LIBOR plus
(7.36% and 7.55% for two LIBOR arrangements unberfterm Loan at September 30, 2007). Unused feéisearevolving credit facilities are
0.25% per annum. Availability under the revolvingdit facilities is limited to 85% of eligible acants receivable, increasing to 90% from
January through April of each
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year. Financial covenants, which apply only toTeem Loan, are limited to a leverage ratio andarlyecapital expenditure limitation i
follows:

Maximum Consolidated Leverage Re

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, mw@mncing with the quarter ended December 31, 20@6Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as
defined, must not be greater than 4.00:1.0. At&aper 30, 2007, this ratio was 3.48:1.0.

Capital Expenditures

We cannot incur aggregate Capital Expenelituas defined, in excess of three percent (3.@%9nsolidated gross revenue for any fiscal
year.

As of September 30, 2007, we were in coamgié with these covenants. Substantially all ofamsets, including the capital stock and
assets of wholly-owned subsidiaries secure obbgatunder the Credit Facility.

Prior Senior Secured Credit Facilities

The credit facilities in place prior to t@eedit Facility discussed above were amended toligr 2005 and January 2006, scheduled to
mature on October 14, 2010 and consisted of a $#iion U.S. revolving line of credit and a $C15lhoin Canadian revolving line of credit,
referred to as revolvers, and term loans total®@ illion. These facilities provided for the satoek-box arrangements as under the Credit
Facility.

At the time of the refinancing discussedah) there was $227.8 million of borrowings outsdiag under the prior revolvers. The
outstanding revolver borrowings at that date cdraeveighted-average interest rate of 7.03%. Th&tanding revolver borrowings at
September 30, 2006 carried a weighted-averageesttesite of 6.97% and were classified as long-tibt since the amounts were expected to
be outstanding for greater than one year.

Equipment Financing Facilities

We have two equipment financing facilitibat allow for the financing of purchased transgiioh and material handling equipment
totaling $32.9 million with $5.5 million of remaimg availability as of September 30, 2007. There $&&4 million of equipment financing
loans outstanding at September 30, 2007, with firtgtest rates ranging from 4.7% to 7.4%.

Contractual Obligations

At September 30, 2007, our contractualgatiions were as follows:

Fiscal years
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
Senior bank det $ 30& $ 3E $ 35 §$ 35 $ 35 $ 329.(
Equipment financing and other ( 4.3 8.C 9.0 4.7 4.1 5.t
Operating lease 21.¢ 20.2 16.€ 12.1 8.5 15.C
Non-cancelable purchase obligations — — — — — —
Total $ 564 $ 317 $ 29 $ 20 $ 161 % 349.t

(1) The equipment financing relates to purchases d&icetransportation and material handling equipm@éther obligations relate to
escrow payments due to sellers for recent acquinsiti

2) In general, we purchase products under purchaggatibhs that are cancelable by us without costxpire after 30 days.
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Capital expenditures

Excluding acquisitions, we incurred netitapexpenditures of $23.1, $19.1 and $10.8 miliilw2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Over
85% of our capital expenditures have generally beade for transportation and material handling piopeint. Net capital expenditures as a
percentage of revenues increased slightly to 1m2007 from 1.3% in 2006, as we upgraded the @éetir acquired companies. We expect
future net capital expenditures as a percentagale§ to range from 1.0% to 1.5%.

Off-balance sheet arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical accounting policies

Critical accounting policies are those tha both important to the accurate portrayal cdmpany's financial condition and results and
require subjective or complex judgments, often essalt of the need to make estimates about tleetedf matters that are inherently uncertain.

In order to prepare financial statemenés tonform to accounting principles generally atedpn the United States, commonly referre
as U.S. GAAP, we make estimates and assumptiohsaffieat the amounts reported in our financialestants and accompanying notes. Ce
estimates are particularly sensitive due to thigimiicance to the financial statements and thesiidity that future events may be significantly
different from our expectations.

We have identified the following accountipglicies that require us to make the most subjeair complex judgments in order to fairly
present our consolidated financial position andltef operations.

Stock-based compensation

Effective September 25, 2005, we adoptedeStent of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAR3IR,Share-Based Paymentasing the
modified-prospective transition method. Prior t®@&0we accounted for stock awards granted to ereploynder the recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principlesr8dapinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and &glat
Interpretations. As a result, no compensation expense was prdyioesognized for stock options granted to empleyafer our IPO, other
than the 2005 amortization of deferred compensalienause all such stock options granted had eseeptices equal to the market value of our
stock on the date of the grant.

Under the modified-prospective transitioathod, compensation expense recognized in 2002@0l included: (a) compensation cost for
all unvested share-based awards granted priorgte®der 25, 2005, based on the grant date faiewedtimated in accordance with SFAS 123,
Accounting For Sto-Based Compensatioand (b) compensation cost for all share-based angrahted subsequent to September 24, 2005,
based on the grant date fair value estimated iordeace with SFAS 123R. Results of prior periodgehaot been restated. SFAS 123R also
requires us to estimate forfeitures in calculatimgexpense related to stock-based compensatiennigact of estimating forfeitures upon
adoption was not material. In addition, SFAS 128Ruires us to reflect the benefits of tax dedustionrexcess of recognized compensation
cost to be reported as both a financing cash infladan operating cash outflow upon adoption. Heess tax benefit classified as a financing
activity would have been classified as an operatifigw if we had not adopted SFAS 123R.
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I nterest rate swaps and collars

We enter into interest rate swaps and et@mminimize the risks and costs associated fiviimcing activities, as well as to maintain an
appropriate mix of fixed-and floating-rate debteT$wap agreements are contracts to exchange \aratel for fixed-interest rate payments
over the life of the agreements. The collar agregmprovide for fixed-ate caps and floors. Our current derivative imagnts are designated
cash flow hedges, for which we record the effecgiogtions of changes in their fair value, net of fa other comprehensive income. We
recognize any ineffective portion of our hedgesannings, of which there has been none to datep@arrderivative instruments were not
designated as hedges and therefore changes ifaineialues were recorded in interest expense.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful acgusifor estimated losses due to the failure ofcauistomers to make required payments. We
perform periodic credit evaluations of our custosremnd typically do not require collateral. Consistgith industry practices, we require
payment from most customers within 30 days, exfmales to our commercial roofing contractorsiolitwe typically require to pay in
60 days.

As our business is seasonal in certairoregiour customers' businesses are also seasates.dgbe lowest in the winter months and our
past due accounts receivable balance as a pereenftégfal receivables generally increases dutiigttme. Throughout the year, we record
estimated reserves based upon our judgment offgpegstomer situations, aging of accounts andhistorical write-offs of uncollectible
accounts.

Periodically, we perform a specific anadysf all accounts past due and write off accoutarmes when we have exhausted reasonable
collection efforts and determined that the liketidoof collection is remote based upon the followfiactors:

. aging statistics and trends;
. customer payment history;
. independent credit reports; a
. discussions with customel

We charge these write-offs against ounedloce for doubtful accounts. In the past five yearite-offs have averaged approximately
0.3% of net sales.

I nventory valuation

Product inventories represent one of orgdst assets and are recorded at net realizahle.v@ur goal is to manage our inventory so that
we minimize out of stock positions. To do this, maintain an adequate inventory of SKUs at eachdbrémased on sales history. At the same
time, we continuously strive to better manage ¢awsr moving classes of inventory. During the ye&e®, monitor our inventory levels by
branch and record provisions for excess inventdrésgd on slower moving inventory. We define paéiixcess inventory as the amount of
inventory on hand in excess of the historical usageluding items purchased in the last three monife then apply our judgment as to
forecasted demand and other factors, includingdation value, to determine the required adjustémnet realizable value. In addition, at
end of each year, we evaluate our inventory at baahch and write off and dispose of obsolete pctdur inventories are generally not
susceptible to technological obsolescence.

During the year, we perform periodic cycteints and write off excess or damaged inventomneasled. At year-end we take a physical
inventory and record any necessary additional voits.
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Vendor rebates

We account for vendor rebates in accordavideEITF Issue 02-16Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gertain
Consideration Received from a Venddany of our arrangements with our vendors proviteuk to receive a rebate of a specified amount,
payable to us when we achieve any of a number akares generally related to the volume of purchtees our vendors. We account for
these rebates as a reduction of the prices oflated vendors' products, which reduces the invemtost until the period in which we sell the
product, at which time these rebates reduce costlet in our income statement. Throughout the, yeaestimate the amount of rebates
receivable based upon the expected level of puesh&¥e continually revise these estimates to refletual rebates earned based on actual
purchase levels. Historically, our actual rebat@gehbeen within our expectations used for our egém If we fail to achieve a measure which
is required to obtain a vendor rebate, we will htoveecord a charge in the period that we deterrttieecriteria or measure for the vendor rel
will not be met to the extent the vendor rebate estBnated and included as a reduction to costlets

If market conditions were to change, vesduay change the terms of some or all of theseranogy Although these changes would not
affect the amounts which we have recorded relatgutdducts already purchased, it may impact ousggnoargin on products we sell or
revenues earned in future periods.

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEXIf Accounting Bulletin 10IRevenue Recognition in Financial Statemeais amended
by Staff Accounting Bulletin 104. The Securitiesldexchange Commission requires that the following basic criteria must be met before
we recognize revenue:

. persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

. delivery has occurred or services have been reddere

the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or detewabie; anc

. collectibility is reasonably assured.

We generally recognize revenue at the pafistle or upon delivery to the customer's site.goods shipped by third party carriers, we
recognize revenue upon shipment since the terms@Beshipping point. Approximately 80% of our reuves are for products delivered by us
or picked up by our customers at our facilitiesjcltprovides for timely and accurate revenue rettamnm

We also ship certain products directly fritta manufacturer to the customer. We recognizgtbss revenue for these sales in accordance
with EITF Issue 99-19Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus BlenaAgent Revenues are recognized upon notifications of
deliveries from our vendors. Delays in receivingj\@gy notifications could impact our financial téts, although it has not been material to
consolidated results of operations in the past.

We also provide certain job site deliveeyvices, which include crane rentals and rooftdjvdees of certain products, for which the
associated revenues are recognized upon compldtitie services. These revenues represent lesd #af our net sales.

All revenues recognized are net of allovesnior discounts and estimated returns, which areigied for at the time of pick up or delive
In the past, customer returns have not been mhtertaur consolidated results of operations.
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I ncome taxes

We account for income taxes using the liighinethod, which requires us to recognize a aurtax liability or asset for current taxes
payable or refundable and a deferred tax liabditpsset for the estimated future tax effects wiperary differences between the financial
statement and tax reporting bases of assets dilitiks to the extent that they are realizablefddeed tax expense (benefit) results from the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities dutte year.

We have operations in 34 U.S. states arekthrovinces in Canada and we are subject to fmitéax audits in each of these jurisdictions
and federally in both the United States and Cang@ldese audits may involve complex issues, which reguire an extended period of time to
resolve. Accruals for tax contingencies requiréausiake estimates and judgments with respect taltimate outcome of potential tax audits.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized for financial @ping purposes and represents the excess of tbardrwe paid to acquire businesses over the
estimated fair value of tangible assets and idebti# intangible assets acquired, less liabilidessumed. At September 30, 2007, our goodwill
balance was approximately $355.2 million, reprasgraipproximately 35% of our total assets.

Under SFAS No.148%00dwill and Other Intangible Assetsve test goodwill for impairment in the fourth gtea of each fiscal year or at
any other time when impairment indicators existafples of such indicators that would cause usstogieodwill for impairment between
annual tests include a significant change in thermss climate, unexpected competition, significkaterioration in market share or a loss of
key personnel.

We determine fair value using a market apph to value our business, which consists of eperting unit (i.e. distribution of building
materials). We believe our stock price is ordinettie best indicator of our market value, althoagkrrations in the stock market may distort
our market value and therefore other valuation odthmay be more appropriate.

If circumstances change or events occurdiate that our fair market value has fallen elmok value, we will compare the estimated
fair value of the goodwill to its book value. Ifettbook value of goodwill exceeds the estimatedvalue of goodwill, we will recognize the
difference as an impairment loss in the determmatif operating income.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation N&y.Atcounting for Uncertainty in Incon
Taxes("FIN 48"), which clarifies when tax benefits shdlde recorded in financial statements, requiretaitedisclosures of uncertain tax
matters and provides guidance on how any tax resestrould be classified in a balance sheet. FIN &fective for us in the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2007. In connection with cdmpation of FIN 48, we will need to analyze therfgipositions in all of the federal and state
jurisdictions where we are required to file incotae returns, as well as all open tax years in tig$sdictions. We are currently evaluating
impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on gonsolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS 157"), whacldresses how fair value should be
measured when required for recognition or disclegurposes under GAAP. It also establishes a &irevhierarchy and will require expanded
disclosures on fair value measurements where atppicSFAS 157 is effective for us in the fiscahybeginning October 1, 2008. We have
completed assessing the impact that SFAS 157 a#léton our consolidated financial statements, athdhe impact is not currently expected
to be material.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Finang@ounting Standards No. 15Bhe Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal
Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No("BFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits companies to measwumey financial
instruments and certain other items at fair vahgpacified election dates. SFAS 159 will be effecfor us in the fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating theaat that the adoption of SFAS 159 will have on @amsolidated financial statements,
although the impact is not currently expected toniagerial.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risksaasgs our on-going business operations. Our pryneiposure includes changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates.

Interest raterisk

Our interest rate risk relates primarilythie variablerate borrowings under our Credit Facility. The daling discussion of our interest r.
swaps and collars (see "Financial Derivatives" Wlis based on a 10% change in interest rates.€ltieanges are hypothetical scenarios used
to calibrate potential risk and do not represemtview of future market changes. The interest caltars have had no impact yet on our interest
expense. As the hypothetical figures discussedibildicate, changes in fair value based on theragdichange in rates generally cannot be
extrapolated because the relationship of the chamgssumption to the change in fair value mayheolinear. The effect of a variation in a
particular assumption is calculated without chagginy other assumption. In reality, changes infantr may result in changes in another,
which may magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

At September 30, 2007, we had $347.4 mildbterm loans and $26.1 million of revolving citeslitstanding under our Credit Facility.
Our weighted-average effective interest rate ohdkét, after considering the effect of the interate swaps, was 7.13% at September 30,
2007. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest ratesffect at September 30, 2007, would have irsgdannual interest expense on the
borrowings outstanding at that date by approxinye&l7 million.

We enter into interest rate swaps and taminimize the risks and costs associated fiviincing activities, as well as to maintain an
appropriate mix of fixed- and floating-rate debiheTswap agreements discussed below are contraetstiange variable-rate for fixed-interest
rate payments over the life of the agreements.cbliar agreements, also discussed below, providéxed-rate caps and floors. The aggregate
fair value of these swaps and collars representeslseof $2.1 million at September 30, 2007. A Hiptical increase (or decrease) of 10% in
interest rates from the level in effect at Septen®@e 2007, would result in an aggregate unreal{®ss) or gain in value of the swaps and
collars of approximately ($2.5) million or $2.4 iioh, respectively.

Financial derivatives

As discussed above, we use interest rateatige instruments to manage the risk of interagt changes by converting a portion of our
variable-rate borrowings into fixed-rate borrowing¢ée had interest rate derivative instruments auatding in a total notional amount of
$300 million at September 30, 2007, which consisted) interest rate swaps totaling $200 millierpiring in April 2010, with a fixed rate of
4.97%; b) a $50 million interest rate collar expiriin April 2010 with a floor rate of 3.99% andapaate of 5.75%; and c) a $50 million
interest rate collar expiring in April 2010 witHflaor rate of 3.75% and a cap rate of 6.00%. Werent into these instruments during the se
quarter of 2007 and cancelled the prior interetst darivative instruments that had notional amototeding $150 million. The increase in the
total notional amount was due to the increasedolmangs under our Credit Facility. The current dative instruments are designated as
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cash flow hedges, for which we record the effectigetions of changes in their fair value, net of a other comprehensive income. We
recognize any ineffective portion of our hedgesannings, of which there has been none to datepfibederivative instruments were not
designated as hedges and therefore changes irfaleialues were recorded in interest expense.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We have exposure to foreign currency exghaate fluctuations for revenues generated byparations outside the United States, which
can adversely impact our net income and cash flaywproximately 6% of our revenues in 2007 were\dsdifrom sales to customers in
Canada. This business is primarily conducted irldbal currency. This exposes us to risks assatiatth changes in foreign currency that can
adversely affect revenues, net income and cashsfléve do not enter into financial instruments toage this foreign currency exchange risk.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conseliibalance sheets of Beacon Roofing Supply, Ihe.@ompany) as of September 30, 2007
and September 30, 2006 and the related consolidsesments of operations, stockholders' equitycantprehensive income, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endedeBgger 30, 2007. These financial statements areeponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on olitsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementereed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. at September 30, 20@7September 30, 2006, and the consolidated redlilss operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Segte®th 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally goieal accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
effectiveness of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'srimaécontrol over financial reporting as of SeptemB0, 2007, based on criteria establishe
Internal Controlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report date
November 27, 2007 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidéitehcial statements, effective September 25, 28@5Company adopted Statement of Finat
Accounting Standards No. 123Bhare-Based Paymeusing the modified-prospective transition method.

Gt ¥ MLLP
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $7,970 @728nd $5,020 in 20C
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Deferred income taxe

Total current assets
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill

Other assets, n

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Current portion of lon-term obligations

Total current liabilities

Borrowings under revolving lines of credit, netoofrrent portior

Senior notes payable, net of current por

Deferred income taxe

Long-term obligations under equipment financing and gthet of curren
portion

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 anc

Stockholders' equity
Common stock (voting); $.01 par value; 100,000,808res authorized;
44,273,312 issued in 2007 and 43,866,484 issu2a06
Undesignated Preferred Stock; 5,000,000 sharesi@zeld, none issued
outstanding
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

September 30
2007

September 30
2006

(Dollars in thousands, except per share datz

$ 6,46¢ $ 1,841
267,56: 210,67t

165,84 164,28t

34,50¢ 38,13t

13,19¢ 10,70

487,58! 425,64!

69,75: 59,29:

355,15! 289,28

94,167 65,67:

$ 1,006,66! $ 839,89(

$ 183,25 $ 154,87t
54,02( 58,71¢

34,77: 6,657

272,05( 220,25.

— 229,75:

343,00( 69,28:

36,49( 18,82:

31,27( 10,61(

44z 43¢

211,56° 203,43

106,64( 81,36:

5,20( 5,93¢

323,85( 291,16¢

$ 1,006,66 $ 839,89(

See accompanying notes.
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended

September 30
2007

September 30
2006

September 24
2005

(Dollars in thousands, except per share datz

Net sales $ 1,645,78" $ 1,500,63 $ 850,92¢
Cost of products sol 1,271,86! 1,136,501 643,73
Gross profil 373,91 364,13° 207,19!
Operating expenses (includes si-based compensation expel
of $4,983, $3,222, and $690 for the years ended,28m06, and
2005, respectively 304,10¢ 263,83t 146,47t
Income from operatior 69,80¢ 100,30: 60,71¢
Other expense
Interest expens 27,43¢ 19,461 4,88t
Interest expen-related party — — 26
Loss on early retirement of de — — 91t
27,43« 19,46 5,82¢
Income before income tax 42,37+ 80,84( 54,89
Income taxe: 17,09t 31,52¢ 21,97¢
Net income $ 25,27¢ $ 49,311 $ 32,91%

Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.57
.|
Diluted $ 0.5¢

Weighted average shares used in computing net ie@anshar

Basic 44,083,91
.|
Diluted 44,971,93

See accompanying notes.
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Balances at September 25, 2(
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol
Receipt of proceeds from stock
subscriptior
Issuance of common sto
Net income
Foreign currency translation
adjustmen

Comprehensive incomnr

Balances at September 25, 2(
Issuance of common sto

Issuance of common stock for optic

excercise:

Redemption of treasury sto
Stocl-based compensatic
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustmen

Comprehensive inconr

Balances at September 30, 2(

Issuance of common stock for optic

excercise:

Stocl-based compensatic
Net income

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, ne

Unrealized loss on financial
derivatives, ne

Comprehensive incomnr

Balances at September 30, 2(

Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity an€omprehensive Income

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Retained Stock Other Total
Number Paid-in Deferred Treasury  Earnings  Subscription Comprehensive  Stockholders'

of Shares  Amount Capital Compensation Stock (Deficit) Receivable Income Equity

(Dollars in thousands, except share date

39,887,98 $ 39¢ $ 139,93 $ (690 $ (515 $ (867) $ (102,76Y) $ 2,74¢ $ 38,24¢
69C 69C
102,76" 102,76"
479,37¢ 5 2,104 2,10¢
32,917 32,917
2,01¢ 2,01¢
34,93¢
40,367,36 404 142,03¢ — (515) 32,05( — 4,76¢ 178,74!
3,000,00! 3C 51,54¢ 51,57¢
848,41t 8 7,13¢ 7,14
(349,29)) 3) (512) il —
— — 3,22 3,22
49,31: 49,31:
1,16¢ 1,16¢
50,47¢
43,866,48 43¢ 203,43: — — 81,36: — 5,93¢ 291,16¢
406,82¢ 4 3,151 3,15¢
4,98: 4,98:
25,27¢ 25,27¢
512 512
(1,249) (1,249)
24,54:
4427331 $ 443 $ 211,567 $ — $ — $ 106,64( $ — $ 5,200 $ 323,85(

See accompanying notes.
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 24,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Operating activities
Net income $ 2527¢ $ 49,31: $ 32,917
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 32,86: 23,79: 8,74¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 4,98: 3,22 69C
Loss on early retirement of de — — 91t
Unrealized gain on interest rate col — (33 —
Deferred income taxe 2,022 (1,509 89¢
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the &ffet
businesses acquire
Accounts receivabl (22,049 (15,630 (17,389
Inventories 13,81t (9,120 (4,82%)
Prepaid expenses and other as 7,00¢ (4,799 (4,26¢€)
Accounts payable and accrued expet (107) 37,56¢ (11,569
Net cash provided by operating activit 63,81¢ 82,80« 6,11¢
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment, net of saleepd: (23,139 (19,069 (20,81)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu (120,159 (336,279 (37,709
Net cash used in investing activiti (143,28¢) (355,33) (48,51¢)
Financing activities
Borrowings (repayments) under revolving lines @fdit, net (203,689 165,77t 18,72¢
Borrowings (repayments) under senior notes payainieé othe 287,35! 58,36: (1,589
Early extinguishment of del — — (18,015
Repayment of junior subordinated notes and wartar
purchase common sto — — (34,335
Repayment of subordinated notes payable to refz€iks — — (29,442)
Proceeds from sale of common st — 51,57¢ 102,76!
Proceeds from exercise of optic 1,11¢ 1,551 2,10¢
Payment of deferred financing co (3,087%) (2,22%) (342)
Income tax benefit from sto-based compensation deduction
excess of the associated compensation 2,04C 5,59¢ —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 83,73¢ 280,63: 39,871
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 354 (14¢€) 107
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 4,622 7,954 (2,419
Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) at beginofirygar 1,847 (6,107 (3,699
Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) at end of $ 6,46¢ $ 1,847 $ (6,107

Non-cash transactions:
Conversion of senior notes payable to new senitgs
payable $ 66,83¢ $

See accompanying notes
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2007

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
1. The Company
Busines:

Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company8ds formed on August 22, 1997 and is incorporatddelaware. The Company distributes
roofing materials and other complementary buildimaterials to customers in 34 states in the UnitateS and 3 provinces in Canada through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Beacon Sales Actjoisj Inc., Quality Roofing Supply Company, Inced&on Roofing Supply Canada
Company, Best Distributing Co., The Roof Centec, IVest End Lumber Company, Inc., JGA Beacon, 8telter Distribution, Inc., Beacon
Pacific, Inc. and North Coast Commercial Roofingt8ys, Inc. The Company completed its initial pribffering (the "IPO" or "Offering”) ol
September 22, 2004 and received the net IPO precge&eptember 28, 2004 (Note 3).

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financiateaments requires management to make estimatessanchptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosafe®ntingent assets and liabilities, at the détide consolidated financial statements. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its wholly-owswdssidiaries. All inter-company
transactions have been eliminated. Certain priar-yeclassifications have been made to conforrhdatirrent-year presentation.

Fiscal Year

In September of 2007, the Company amentddayilaws to change its fiscal year-end date e&sber 30 of each year. Prior to that
amendment, the Company's fiscal year ended onldbke of business on the last Saturday in Septeofleach year. The year ended
September 30, 2006 ("2006") was comprised of 5Xaeghile the years ended September 30, 2007 ("2@0d September 24, 2005 ("200
were comprised of 52 weeks. Each of the Compairgtstiiree quarters ends on the last day of thenciar month.

Industry Segment Information

Based on qualitative and quantitative datestablished by Statement of Financial Accogngtandards (SFAS) No. 131 (SFAS No. 1
Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise andt&elnformatior, the Company has determined that it operatesmwihe reportable
segment, which is the wholesale distribution ofding materials.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

During the first quarter of 2007, the Compaefinanced its prior credit facilities (Note @)d invested the associated excess funds in a
money market account, which have been classifiezhsis
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equivalents. The Company considers all highly liguvestments with maturities of three months ssle&hen purchased to be cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents also include unsettésiit@ard transactions.

Inventories and Rebates

Inventories, consisting substantially afished goods, are valued at the lower of cost aketaCost is determined using the moving
weighted-average cost method.

The Company's arrangements with vendorsaylg provide for monthly, quarterly and/or annuabates of a specified amount of
consideration payable when a number of measureslheaen achieved, generally related to a specifiatutative level of calendar-year
purchases.

The Company accounts for such rebates@dution of the prices of the vendor's inventamyilihe product is sold, at which time such
rebates reduce cost of sales in the consolidas¢enséents of operations. Throughout the year, thagamy estimates the amount of the rebates
based upon the expected level of purchases. The&@worcontinually revises these estimates to refletital rebates earned based on actual
purchase levels. Amounts due from vendors undeetherangements as of September 30, 2007 and Sept8M 2006 totaled $22.8 and
$27.4 million, respectively, and are included iméjfaid expenses and other assets" in the accormgaognsolidated balance sheets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquired in conoaatiith acquisitions are recorded at fair valuefathe date of the acquisition and depreciated
utilizing the straight-line method over the remapiives. All other additions are recorded at caat] depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimatesgful lives:

Asset Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and improvemen 10 to 40 year

Equipment 3to 10 year

Furniture and fixture 5to 10 year:

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of the estimated useful life or the ternthef lease

considering renewal options expected to be exafc
Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accosdasith Securities and Exchange Commissions (SE&fj &tcounting Bulletin 101Revenu
Recognition in Financial Statemenas amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin 104. Th&€3&quires that the following four basic criteriaish
be met before the Company recognizes revenue:

. persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

. delivery has occurred or services have been redg

the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or detewabie; anc

. collectibility is reasonably assured.

Based on these criteria, the Company gépeezognizes revenue at the point of sale or ugelivery to the customer site. For goods
shipped by third party carriers, the Company recagrevenue upon shipment since the terms argaBneOB shipping point.

The Company also arranges for certain ptsdio be shipped directly from the manufactureheocustomer. The Company recognizes
gross revenue for these sales in accordance wittr@ing Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 99-R@porting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus
Net as an Ager. Revenue is recognized upon notifications of aglas from the vendors.
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The Company also provides certain job déitvery services, which include crane rentals mxaftop deliveries of certain products, for
which the associated revenues are recognized wpupletion of the services. These revenues représesithan 1% of the Company's sales.

All revenues recognized are net of alloveanior discounts and estimated returns, which areiged for at the time of pick up or delive
Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and hagdtiosts, consisting of driver wages and vehicleeazps, as operating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operat®impping and handling costs were approximately&7®in 2007, $73,534 in 2006, and
$40,043 in 2005.

Financial Derivatives

The Company enters into interest rate svaapiscollars to minimize the risks and costs asdediwith financing activities, as well as to
maintain an appropriate mix of fixed-and floatireger debt. The swap agreements are contracts tamgetvariable-rate for fixed-interest rate
payments over the life of the agreements. The icafeeements provide for fixed-rate caps and flobhe& Company's current derivative
instruments are designated as cash flow hedgewhiich the Company records the effective portiohshainges in their fair value, net of tax
other comprehensive income. The Company recogaizgsneffective portion of the hedges in earnirggsyhich there has been none to date.
The Company's prior derivative instruments weredssignated as hedges and therefore changes iidaheialues were recorded in interest
expense.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments, which potentiallyopct the Company to concentration of credit regkqsist principally of accounts receivable.
Company's accounts receivable are principally foustomers in the building industry located in th@teld States and Canada. Concentratic
credit risk with respect to accounts receivableyéner, is limited due to the large number of custmrcomprising the Company's customer
base. The Company performs credit evaluationssafustomers; however, the Company's policy ismoeduire collateral. At September 30,
2007 and 2006, the Company had no significant conatons of credit risk.

Approximately 67% of the Company's invegtpurchases were from 11 vendors in 2007 and 18orsrin 2006 and 2005.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Asset§SFAS No. 144), requires impairment losses to be
recorded on long-lived assets used in operatiorewifdicators of impairment are present and thésendnted cash flows estimated to be
generated by those assets are less than the assgtsig amounts. If such assets are considerbd tmpaired, the impairment to be recogn
is the total by which the carrying amounts of theds, if any, exceed the fair values determinewyusdiscounted cash flow model.

Amortizable and Other Intangible Assets

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, tlenPany amortizes identifiable intangible assetsistimg of non-compete agreements,
customer relationships and deferred financing dostsiuse these assets have finite lives. &étmmpete agreements are generally amortized
the terms of the associated contractual agreemamgtomer relationship assets are amortized oreglexated basis based on the expected
flows generated by the existing customers; androeldinancing costs are amortized over the liiethe associated financings. Trademarks
not amortized because they have
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indefinite lives. The Company evaluates its traddssifor impairment on an annual basis based offieih@alue of the underlying assets.
Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized for financial @ping purposes and represents the excess of thardrpaid to acquire a company over the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquired.

Under SFAS No.148%00dwill and Other Intangible Assetthe Company tests goodwill for impairment in tberth quarter of each fisc
year or at any other time when impairment indicaxist. Examples of such indicators, which wowddse the Company to test goodwill
impairment between annual tests, include a sigmifichange in the business climate, significankpeeted competition, significant
deterioration in market share, and/or or a lodsegfpersonnel.

The Company determines fair value usingasket approach to value its business, which cansisbne reporting unit (i.e. distribution of
building materials). As the Company's common sisgbublicly traded, the Company believes its stpdke is the best indicator of its market
value.

If circumstances change or events occindizate that the Company's fair value has fallelow book value, the Company will compare
the estimated fair value of goodwill to its bookue If the book value of goodwill exceeds therastied fair value of goodwill, the Company
will recognize the difference as an impairment limssperating income.

Early Extinguishment of Debt

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 145, eslof $915 on early retirement of debt in 2005 glassified within other expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective September 25, 2005, the Compatopted SFAS No. 123RBhare-Based Paymentasing the modified-prospective transition
method. Prior to 2006, the Company accounted farksawards granted to employees under the recogratid measurement principles of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2&;counting for Stock Issued to Employees, and &klaterpretations As a result, no
compensation expense was previously recognizestdok options granted to employees after the CoypdRO, except for the 2005
amortization of deferred compensation, becaussual stock options granted had exercise priced sgtize market value of the Company's
stock on the date of the grant.

Under the modified-prospective transitioathod, compensation expense recognized in 2002@®@ included: (a) compensation cost for
all unvested share-based awards granted priorpte®der 25, 2005, based on the grant date faievaedtimated in accordance with SFAS
No. 123,Accounting For Stock-Based Compensatand (b) compensation cost for all shassed awards granted subsequent to Septemt
2005, based on the grant date fair value estiniatadcordance with SFAS No. 123R. Results of pueniods have not been restated. SFAS
No. 123R also requires the Company to estimateitores in calculating the expense related to ~based compensation. The impact of
estimating forfeitures upon adoption was not matehn addition, SFAS No. 123R requires the Compiameflect the benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensatiartede reported as both a financing cash infloal am operating cash outflow upon
adoption. The excess tax benefits classified afimg activities of $2.0 and $5.6 million in 2087d 2006, respectively, would have been
classified as operating inflows if the Company hatladopted SFAS No. 123R.

Compensation cost arising from stock ogigranted to employees and non-employee diregecognized as expense using the straight
line method over the vesting period, which représéme requisite service period. As of SeptembefB07, there was $6.4 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to stodkroptThat cost is expected to be recognized ovezighted-
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average period of 1.8 years. The Company recoret-based compensation expense of $5.0 milliorD(#8llion net of tax) or $0.07 per
basic share and per diluted share in 2007 andrian ($2.0 million net of tax) or $0.05 per basihare and $0.04 per diluted share in 2006.

The following table illustrates the effert net income and earnings per share for 2005the i€ompany's stock-based compensation had
been determined based on the fair value at the dedas for awards made prior to 2006, in accoreavith SFAS No. 123:

September 24,

2005
Net income, as reporte $ 32,91
Add: stocl-based compensation, net of 414
Less: stoc-based compensation expense determined under fa@ reethod, net ¢

tax (1,25%)
Pro forma net incom $ 32,07
Net income per share, as report

Basic $ 0.8:
Diluted $ 0.8C
Net income per share, pro forn

Basic $ 0.81
Diluted $ 0.7¢

The fair values of the options under SFAS N23R in 2007 and 2006 and for the pro formald&res under SFAS No. 123 in 2005 were
estimated at the date of the grants using the B&atioles option-pricing model with the following iykted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 24,
2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Expected lives of options (yeal 5.0C 5.0C 5.0C
Risk-free interest rat 4.7¢% 4.61% 3.72%
Expected volatility 45% 45% 45%
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 10.0¢ $ 9.0¢ $ 5.37

Expected lives of the options granted asel primarily on history and expected volatilites based on the historical volatilities of the
Company's stock and stocks of comparable publicpamies. Estimated annual forfeiture rates of (L0.0% were utilized in the expense
recognition of options granted in 2007.

Amortization of Deferred Compensation

Deferred compensation represented the exafdair market value over the exercise pricefans to purchase common stock granted to
employees prior to the IPO and amounts associaitbdsivares sold to employees at less than fair etadiue prior to the IPO. Such amounts
were amortized over the vesting period of the eglawards, with the final amortization of $690 igmiaed in 2005.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive inconae@ordance with SFAS No. 13Reporting Comprehensive Incoif8-AS No. 130). SFA
No. 130 establishes rules for the reporting anglaysof
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comprehensive income and its components. Accuntutatteer comprehensive income as of September 37, &0d 2006 consisted of the
following:

September 30 September 30
2007 2006
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofefigct $ 6,44¢ $ 5,93¢
Unrealized loss on financial derivatives, net of ééfect (1,249 —
Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ 5200 $ 5,93¢

.= |
Net Income per Share

The Company computes net income per shaaedordance with SFAS No. 128Barnings per SharéSFAS No. 128). Under the
provisions of SFAS No. 128, basic net income penroon share is computed by dividing net income imieighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted net income pemeon share is computed by dividing net incomenawieighted average number of
common shares and dilutive common share equivalkatsoutstanding using the treasury stock metB@odhmon equivalent shares consist of
the incremental common shares issuable upon theisgef stock options.

The following table reflects the calculatiof weighted average shares outstanding, adjdisteétle 2006 stock split (Note 3), for each
period presented:

Year Ended
September 30 September 30 September 24
2007 2006 2005
Weighte-average common shares outstanding
basic 44,083,91 42,903,27 39,716,93
Dilutive effect of employee stock optio 888,01 1,141,49 1,402,01.
Weighte-average shares assuming dilut 44,971,93 44,044,76 41,118,94

.| .| |
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist mainly oftcasccounts receivable, accounts payable, borramimger the Company's revolving lines of
credit and long-term debt. At September 30, 20@V 2006, the carrying amounts of these instrumeppscximated their fair values.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes uiadiability method, which requires it to recopmia current tax liability or asset for current
taxes payable or refundable and a deferred taiitjabr asset for the estimated future tax effegftéemporary differences between the finan
statement and tax reporting bases of assets dilitiks to the extent that they are realizablefddeed tax expense (benefit) results from the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities duitie year.

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of the Compaforsign subsidiary, Beacon Roofing Supply Canaden@any ("BRSCC"), are translated into
U.S. dollars at current exchange rates as of tlenbea sheet date, and revenues and expensesresiatied at average monthly exchange rates.
Net unrealized translation gains or losses arerdecbdirectly to a separate component of stockhsl@guity, net of recognized deferred ta
Foreign currency transactions were minimal andzedlgains and losses were not material for artfi@periods presented. The Company has
inter-company debt from BRSCC, which has been camed as long-term for financial reporting purposiese repayment is
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not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable &utAccordingly, the balance is marked to markehqsriod with a corresponding entry
recorded as a separate component of stockholdgrity eln addition, during 2006 the Company exedweb4 million short-term note with
BRSCC that was repaid in 2007.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation N&y.Atcounting for Uncertainty in Incon
Taxes("FIN 48"), which clarifies when tax benefits shdlde recorded in financial statements, requiretaitedisclosures of uncertain tax
matters and provides guidance on how any tax resesfrould be classified in a balance sheet. FIIS é4fective for the Company in the fiscal
year beginning October 1, 2007. In connection wWithadoption of FIN 48, the Company will need talgre the filing positions in all of tt
federal and state jurisdictions where it is reqiitee file income tax returns, as well as all op@nytears in these jurisdictions. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact that the adoptibRI® 48 will have on its consolidated financiah@ments.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements” ("SFAS 157"), whacliresses how fair value should be
measured when required for recognition or disclegurposes under GAAP. It also establishes a &irevhierarchy and will require expanded
disclosures of fair value measurements, where egile. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company inftbeal year beginning October 1, 2008.
The Company has not completed assessing the inipacsFAS 157 will have on its consolidated finahstatements, although the impact is
not expected to be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Finans@ounting Standards No. 15Bhe Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finl
Liabilities-Including an amendment of FASB Statement No("8FAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits companies to measwey financial
instruments and certain other items at fair valuspacified election dates. SFAS 159 will be effextin the fiscal year beginning September
2008. The Company is currently evaluating the inplaat the adoption of SFAS 159 will have on itesalidated financial statements, altho
the impact is not currently expected to be material

3.  Common Stock
Initial Public Offering

On September 21, 2004, the SEC declare@dimepany's new stock registration effective. Ont&mjper 22, 2004, the Offering was
completed, with public trading of the Company'sktoommencing on September 23, 2004. The Offeriag settled on September 28, 2004,
subsequent to the Company's fiscal 2004 year-eted @hae Offering was for 8,500,000 shares (prightothree-for-two stock split in
June 2006 discussed below) at a pre-split pricka@ublic of $13.00 per share. After the undewrvsitdiscount of $7,735, net proceeds to the
Company were $102,765, which the Company receive8aptember 28, 2004. The Company also had pr&@adé8 of transaction costs and
received $2,584 from the Company's warrant holdera reimbursement of a portion of the underwtitBsgount. The net proceeds were used
to redeem 2,839,937 warrants for $34,335 and rgpagr subordinated notes payable of $18,527 (idicig a debt discount of $915 and
accrued interest) and subordinated notes payaldated parties of $29,464, with the remainde$20,555 used to repay borrowings under
Company's revolving lines of credit.
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Secondary Offering

On December 16, 2005, the Company soldnidon shares of common stock in a public offeratgb27.50 per share (prior to the three-
for-two stock split discussed below). Selling stocklers also sold shares in the offering. The netgeds to the Company from this offering,
after all associated expenses, totaled approxign&gl.6 million and were used for the pay downesfalver borrowings. The Company did not
receive any proceeds from the sales by the sedtiockholders.

Three-for-Two Stock Split

In May 2006, the Company's Board of Direstbeclared a three-for-two common stock split,olihivas paid in the form of a stock
dividend on June 12, 2006 to the stockholders afnekat the close of business on May 31, 2006. Atingly, all share and per share data and
the related capital amounts for all periods presg:neflect the effects of this split, except femiis that are otherwise designated. In additior
Company's treasury stock was retired in May 2006.

4. Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets

Goodwill was $355,155 and $289,282 at Sept& 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, of which $228®d $224.2 million, respectively, can
be amortized for income tax purposes. The Compaugsiwill balance increased by $65,873 in 2007 arily due to an addition of $64,405
from the acquisitions described in Note 5 and $4 #6m foreign currency translation. In 2006, godtincreased by $180,729 due to an
addition of $180,186 from acquisitions and $543rfrimreign currency translation.

Intangibles and other assets, includedherdong-term assets, consist of the following:

September 30 September 30
2007 2006

Amortizable intangible asse
Non-compete agreemerr $ 515( $ 1,63¢
Customer relationshir 88,74¢ 58,09¢
Beneficial lease arrangemel 61C 61C
Deferred financing costs and ott 7,97¢ 5,10¢
102,48. 65,45
Less: accumulated amortizati 26,27 11,53
76,20¢ 53,92:
Unamortizable trademarl 9,75( 9,75(
Other asset 8,212 2,00(
Total other intangible asse $ 94,167 $ 65,67:

Amortization expense related to intangédsets amounted to approximately $15,071, $9,6itlL$4,206 in 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. The intangible lives range from oméifteen years and the weighted average remaiifingvas 13.2 years at September 30, 2007.
Estimated future annual amortization amounts ferahove intangible assets as of September 30,\2665¥$15,924, $13,042, $10,499, $8,¢
$6,876, and $21,234 for 2008, 2009, 2010, 20112 20 thereafter, respectively.

5. Acquisitions
North Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, I nc.

On April 2, 2007, the Company purchased®4 @ the outstanding stock of North Coast ComméR@ofing Systems, Inc. and certain of
its subsidiaries and affiliates (together "Northa€®), a Twinsburg, Ohio-based distributor of comeia roofing systems and related
accessories,
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with 16 locations in eight U.S. states at the twhéhe acquisition. North Coast has branches iroQHinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan,
New York, Pennsylvania and West Virginia. This gnase was funded with cash on hand along with fimedowed under the Company's U
revolving line of credit. North Coast had net sal&€$235 million (unaudited) for the year ended btaB1, 2006. A total of $7.9 million of cash
remains in escrow at September 30, 2007 for pastrgy indemnification claims and is included inartlong-term assets and liabilities. The
Company has included the results of operationdlfoth Coast from the date of acquisition and aphfiesliminary purchase accounting,
which, along with certain purchase price adjustmemsulted in recorded goodwill of $62.3 millian@er below (in 000's). The Company
expects to finalize the purchase accounting irthire quarter of fiscal year 2008.

Accounts receivabl $ 31,733
Inventories 13,34¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 982
Property and equipme 4,15(
Deferred taxe (20,400
Accounts payable and accrued expet (19,169
Net asset 20,65z
Non-compete 3,30
Customer relationshir 29,55(
Goodwill 62,29¢
Purchase pric $ 115,80(

I

Roofing and Sheet Metal Supply, Inc.

On August 30, 2006, the Company purchasetio assets of Roofing & Sheet Metal Supply, (lRSM"), a Tulsa, Oklahoma-based
distributor of residential and commercial roofingpgucts with locations in Tulsa, Oklahoma, Jopltissouri and Springdale and Fort Smith,
Arkansas. This purchase was funded through the @oypU.S. revolving line of credit. A total of $Imillion of cash remains in escrow at
September 30, 2007 for padbsing indemnification claims and is included ther current assets. RSM had net sales of $33omiflinauditec
for the year ended November 30, 2005. The Companyiritluded the results of operations for RSM ftoedate of acquisition and applied
purchase accounting, which, along with certain pase price adjustments, resulted in recorded gdioafi$15.3 million as follows (in 000's):

Net asset $ 3,37¢
Customer relationshir 6,73¢
Goodwill 15,25¢
Purchase pric $ 25,37:

.|

Roof Depot, Inc.

On August 25, 2006, the Company purchaseio assets of Roof Depot, Inc. ("Roof Depot"Mianesota-based distributor of
residential and commercial roofing and other reldteilding products with locations in MinneapolisdaStillwater, Minnesota. This purchase
was funded through the Company's U.S. revolving tificredit. A total of $1.0 million of cash remsiim escrow at September 30, 2007 for
post-closing indemnification claims and is includeather current assets. Roof Depot had net £4l$81 million (unaudited) for the year
ended December 31, 2005. The Company has inclinecksults of operations for Roof Depot from theedd acquisition and applied
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purchase accounting, which, along with certain pase price adjustments, resulted in recorded gdioafi#4.0 million as follows (in 000's):

Net asset $ 10,21¢
Customer relationshiy 3,86:
Goodwill 4,01¢
Purchase pric $ 18,10(

|

Mississippi Roofing Supply, Inc., Sunbelt Supply LL C and Alabama Roofing Supply LLC

On January 17, 2006, the Company purcheseedin assets of Mississippi Roofing Supply, ISaunbelt Supply LLC, and Alabama
Roofing Supply LLC (together the "Supply Companjeftiree affiliated distributors of roofing and etrbuilding products with two locations
in Alabama and one in Mississippi. This purchase fuaded through the Company's U.S. revolving tifieredit and term loans. The Supply
Companies had combined net sales of $76 milliomadited) for the year ended December 31, 2005 Cidrepany has included the results of
operations for the Supply Companies from the dagequisition. The purchase price was adjustediferSupply Companies' financial
performance for the year ended December 31, 2006 Company applied purchase accounting, which galgth certain purchase price
adjustments, resulted in recorded goodwill of $58illion as follows (in 000's):

Net asset $ 7,75¢
Non-compete 31¢%
Customer relationshir 7,82¢
Goodwill 53,53
Purchase pric $ 69,42¢

.|

C& S Roofing Materials, Inc. D/B/A Pacific Supply Company

On January 10, 2006, the Company purchesedin assets of C&S Roofing Materials, Inc. D/B?acific Supply Company ("Pacific”), a
distributor of roofing and other building produegtgh four locations in Orange and Los Angeles camin California. This purchase was
funded through the Company's U.S. revolving lineredit. Pacific had net sales of $53 million (udiéed) for the year ended December 31,
2005. The Company has included the results of ¢ipasafor Pacific from the date of acquisition applied purchase accounting, which, al
with certain purchase price adjustments, resutigéd¢orded goodwill of $26.7 million as follows @90's):

Net asset $ 6,74(
Non-compete 181
Customer relationshif 9,70(
Goodwill 26,66¢
Purchase pric $ 43,29(
.|
SDI Holding, Inc.

On October 14, 2005, the Company purch&asédbs of the outstanding stock of SDI Holding, Ii&helter"), a distributor of roofing and
other building products with 51 branches in 14edatt the time of the acquisition. This purchase fuaded through the Company's U.S.
revolving line of credit and term loans. Based upbelter's final performance for the 2005 calengsar, the sellers qualified for an earn-out
payment of $6.4 million, which was paid in June @0Bhelter had net sales of
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$342 million (unaudited) for the year ended Decen®tig 2005. The Company has included the resultpefations for Shelter from the date
acquisition and applied purchase accounting, wtatdng with certain purchase price adjustmentsjlted in recorded goodwill of
$78.0 million as follows (in 000's):

Accounts receivabl $ 48,35!
Inventories 53,10¢
Property and equipme 15,313
Other asset 17,27!
Accounts payable and accrued expet (57,042
Other liabilities (8,976
Beneficial lease 61C
Non-compete 84z
Customer relationshiy 25,85
Goodwill 77,99:
Purchase pric $ 173,32¢

I

Supplemental Pro Forma Information—Unaudited

The unaudited pro forma net sales for tryended September 30, 2007, assuming the atmuisitNorth Coast had occurred at the
beginning of the year were $1,744 million. Pro farmet income and net income per share for thabg@vere not presented as the impact o
North Coast acquisition on net income was not netérhe unaudited pro forma summary informatiotobefor the year ended September
2006, gives effect to the acquisition of Shelteif dse acquisition had occurred at the beginnifithat period and is after giving effect to
certain adjustments, including amortization of ithtangible assets subject to amortization, inteegpense incurred as a consequence of the
increased borrowings under the Company's crediitfas, and related income taxes. The impact oftN&€oast and the aggregate impact of
inclusion of the other 2006 acquisitions—Pacifiee Supply Companies, Roof Depot and RSM—on thdgrmoa net income and net income
per share presented below were not material ttnnete and therefore were not presented. Howeek tle impact from those acquired
companies also been included in the pro formaalesdelow, total pro forma net sales (unauditenl)ldhave been $1,874 million for the y
ended September 30, 2006. The unaudited pro foumangiry information below is not necessarily indioaf the financial results that would
have occurred if the Shelter acquisition had bessemmated at the beginning of that period, ndrriscessarily indicative of the financial
results which may be attained in the future.
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The pro forma summary information is bagpdn available information and upon certain assionptthat the Company's management
believes are reasonable.

September 30, 200!

Unaudited
(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

Net sales $ 1,516,45!
|
Net income $ 48,77
|

Net income per shar

Basic $ 1.14
|
Diluted $ 1.11
|

Other Recent Acquisitions

On May 18, 2007, the Company purchasediteassets of Wholesale Roofing Supply, a singtation distributor of residential and
commercial roofing products located in Knoxvilleennessee. Additionally, on November 23, 2005, the@any purchased certain assets of
Easton Wholesale Company, Inc., a single locatistmidutor of building products located in Eastdaryland. Pro forma information has not
been provided for these acquisitions since the anfmathe financial statements was not material.

6. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

The significant components of prepaid eggsrand other assets are as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2007 2006
Vendor rebate $ 22,79: $ 27,39¢
Other 11,71¢ 10,73¢
$ 34,50¢ $ 38,13¢

7. Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net, consist ofoliewing:

September 30, September 30,
2007 2006

Land $ 2,19¢ $ 2,124
Buildings and leasehold improveme 16,32¢ 13,17¢
Equipment 95,23¢ 74,87"
Furniture and fixture 10,11¢ 8,58t
123,87 98,751

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 54,12 39,46¢
$ 69,75! $ 59,29:

Depreciation and amortization of propeny &quipment totaled $17,792, $14,121 and $7,520@7, 2006 and 2005, respective
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8. Accrued Expenses

The significant components of accrued espsrare as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2007 2006

Inventory receipt: $ 15,937 $ 18,24
Employesrelated 13,52¢ 19,55¢
Interest expens 6,24: 1,45:
Customer incentive 5,33: 4,65¢
Property taxe 4,54¢ 3,79i
Income taxe: — 6,50¢
Other 8,43¢ 4,50¢

$ 54,02( $ 58,71¢

9. Financing Arrangements
Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On November 2, 2006, we entered into anralee and restated seven-year $500 million U.Soseeicured credit facility and a

C$15 million senior secured Canadian credit faciith GE Antares Capital ("GE Antares") and a dgate of other lenders (combined, the
"Credit Facility"). The Credit Facility refinancate prior $370 million credit facilities that alseere provided through GE Antares. The Credit
Facility provides us with lower interest rates avadilable funds for future acquisitions and ongoiragking capital requirements. In addition,
the Credit Facility increases the allowable totalipment financing and/or capital lease financm@35 million. The Credit Facility provides
for a cash receipts lock-box arrangement that gissesole control over the funds in lock-box acceuunhless excess availability is less than
$10 million or an event of default occurs, in whitdse the senior secured lenders would have thetadake control over such funds and to
apply such funds to repayment of the senior debt.

The Credit Facility consists of a U.S. g credit facility of $150 million (the "US Reweer"), which includes a sub-facility of
$20 million for letters of credit, and an initiadB%0 million term loan (the "Term Loan"). The CreBaécility also includes a C$15 million senior
secured revolving credit facility provided by GEraaa Finance Holding Company (the "Canada RevglvEhere was a combined
$131.0 million available for borrowings and $26.1lion outstanding under the US Revolver and Caaadevolver at September 30, 2007.
Borrowings outstanding under the revolving lines@dit in the accompanying balance sheet at SdqaeB80, 2007 were classified as short-
term debt since the Company paid off those borrgasubsequent to year-end and there is no curxpattation of a minimum level of
outstanding revolver borrowings in fiscal year 2008ere were $6.5 million of outstanding standhiels of credit at September 30, 2007. The
Term Loan requires amortization of 1% per year ghdsy in quarterly installments of approximately@million, and the remainder is due in
2013. The Credit Facility may also be expandedyouan additional $200 million under certain cdiudis. There are mandatory prepayments
under the Credit Facility under certain conditions)uding the following cash flow condition:

Excess Cash Flo

On May 15 of each fiscal year, commencingvay 15, 2008, we must pay an amount equal to 8D#te Excess Cash Flow (as defined
in the Credit Facility) for the prior fiscal yeamt to exceed $7.0 million with respect to anydisgear. Based on the Company's results for
2007, no payment will be due next year.
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Interest
Interest on borrowings under the U.S. drfadiility is payable at our election at eithertioé following rates:

. the base rate (that is the higher of (a) the batsefor corporate loans quoted in The Wall Streatidal or (b) the Federal
Reserve overnight rate plti$2 of 1%) plus a margin of 0.75% for the Term Loan.

. the current LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 1.00% (Jo8. Revolver loans) or 2.00% (for Term Loan).
Interest under the Canadian credit facifitpayable at our election at either of the foilogvrates:

. an index rate (that is the higher of (1) the Camagirime rate as quoted in The Globe and Mail @dhe 3-day BA Rate plu:
0.75%), or

. the BA rate as described in the Canadian facilitxg 1.00%.

The US Revolver currently carries an irgerate of LIBOR plus 1% (6.80% at September 30,720while the Canada revolver carries an
interest rate of the Canadian prime rate plus 0.f&26% at September 30, 2007), and the Term Laaies an interest rate of LIBOR plus
(ranging from 7.36% to 7.55% at September 30, 200iysed fees on the revolving credit facilities &r25% per annum. Availability under
the revolving credit facilities is limited to 85% eligible accounts receivable, increasing to 9086rf January through April of each year.
Financial covenants, which apply only to the Teroah, are limited to a leverage ratio and a yeafjtal expenditure limitation as follows:

Maximum Consolidated Leverage Re

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, m@mmcing with the quarter ended December 31, 20@6Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as
defined, must not be greater than 4.00:1.0. At&aper 30, 2007, this ratio was 3.48:1.0.

Capital Expenditures

We cannot incur aggregate Capital Expenelituas defined, in excess of three percent (3.@d%9nsolidated gross revenue for any fiscal
year.

As of September 30, 2007, we were in coamgié with these covenants. Substantially all ofamsets, including the capital stock and
assets of wholly-owned subsidiaries secure obbgatunder the Credit Facility.
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Senior Notes Payable

Senior notes payable consisted of the fiolig:

September 30, September 30,
2007 2006

Senior notes payable to commercial lenders, degiml quarterly

payments of principal of $0.9 million with the reiméer due in 2013,

plus required prepayment amounts and interesedbdlse rate, as

defined, plus 0.75% or LIBOR plus 2.0% (7.36% t65P6 at Septemb

30, 2007) through November 20 $ 347,37 $ =

Senior notes payable to commercial lenders, dwarying quarterly

payments of principal, plus required prepaymentamsand interest i

the bank prime rate plus 0.50% or LIBOR plus 1.15%24% at

September 30, 2006) through October 2 — 27,44:

Senior notes payable to commercial lenders, degjiral quarterly

payments of principal, plus interest at the bankprrate plus 1.50% ¢

LIBOR plus 2.75% (8.16% at September 30, 2006)u@hoOctober

2010 — 45,34

347,37" 72,78
Less current portio 4,37¢ 3,50(

$ 343,000 $ 69,28:

Prior Senior Secured Credit Facilities

The credit facilities in place prior to tBeedit Facility discussed above were amended toltgz 2005 and January 2006, scheduled to
mature on October 14, 2010 and consisted of a $#iion U.S. revolving line of credit and a $C15lhoin Canadian revolving line of credit,
referred to as revolvers, and term loans total®@ illion. These facilities provided for the saloek-box arrangements as under the Credit
Facility.

At the time of the refinancing discussed\ah) there was $227.8 million of borrowings outsifiag under the prior revolvers. The
outstanding revolver borrowings at that date cdraeveighted-average interest rate of 7.03%. Th&tanding revolver borrowings at
September 30, 2006 carried a weighted- averageesiteates of 6.97% and were classified as long-tibt since the amounts were expected
to be outstanding for greater than one year.

Equipment Financing Facilities

We have two equipment financing facilitibat allow for the financing of purchased transgtioh and material handling equipment
totaling $32.9 million with $5.5 million of remaimg availability as of September 30, 2007. There $&%&4 million of equipment financing
loans outstanding at September 30, 2007, with fireztest rates ranging from 4.7% to 7.4%.

Other Information
The Company made interest payments untlénahcing arrangements totaling $23,272 in 20RI8,463 in 2006, and $5,185 in 2006.
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Annual principal payments for all outstargiborrowings for each of the next five years drateafter as of September 30, 2007 were as
follows (Other obligations relate to escrow paymseshie to sellers for recent acquisitions):

Equipment Revolving
Senior Secured Financing Lines of
Fiscal year Credit Facility & Other Credit Total
2008 $ 437 % 4330 $ 26,06¢ $ 34,77
2009 3,50( 7,99( — 11,49(
2010 3,50( 8,96( = 12,46(
2011 3,50( 4,69( — 8,19(
2012 3,50( 4,13( = 7,63(
Thereaftel 329,00( 5,50( — 334,50(
Subtotal 347,37¢ 35,60( 26,06¢ 409,04:
Less current portio 4,37¢ 4,33( 26,06¢ 34,77:
Total lon¢-term debt $ 343,000 $ 31,27C $ — $ 374,27(

10. Leases

The Company operates in leased facilitiggch are accounted for as operating leases. Hsetetypically provide for a base rent plus
estate taxes. Certain of the leases provide fal&sicg rents over the lives of the leases anderpénse is recognized over the terms of those
leases on a straight-line basis. The Company lg¢bses buildings from its former Chairman (and eatrdirector) for an aggregate of
approximately $0.6 million in 2007and 2006 and $@i8ion in 2005.

At September 30, 2006, the minimal rentahmitments under all non-cancelable operating Easth initial or remaining terms of more
than one year are as follows:

Operating

Year ending Septembe! Leases
2008 $ 21,56¢
2009 20,17¢
2010 16,79¢
2011 12,07¢
2012 8,53(
Thereaftel 15,02:
Total minimum lease paymer $ 94,16«
I

Rent expense was $23,022 in 2007, $17 82006 and $9,608 in 2005. Sublet income was imma&fer these years.
11. Stock Options
Stock Option Plans

The Company is currently making stock-basedrds under its 2004 Stock Plan, which was adopteSeptember 21, 2004. The 2004
Stock Plan allows for the granting of up to 3.3limil shares of Common Stock in the form of stockays or stock awards to key employees
and members of the Board of Directors. The key $eofrthe grants are determined by the Company'stBafeDirectors.

The 1998 Stock Plan allowed for the gramtihoptions to purchase up to 3.1 million shafreS@mmon Stock. Options were generally
allowed to be exercised beginning 18 months afterdate of
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grant and will terminate ten years from the graatedNo further awards will be made under the 1S8#k Plan.
In the event of a change in control of @@mpany, all outstanding options are immediateltee.

Information regarding the Company's stopltans, adjusted for the 2006 stock split, is summnea below (not in thousands):

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Life Value
(in Millions)
Outstanding at September 25, 2( 2,862,53' $ 1.67
Granted 613,50( 12.1:
Exercisec (479,37) 1.31
Cancelec (44,667 6.77
Outstanding at September 24, 2( 2,951,99 3.8t
Granted 723,65: 19.91
Exercisec (848,41¢) 1.8<
Cancelec (26,57°) 16.61
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 2,800,65! 8.47
Granted 736,25( 21.8¢
Exercisec (406,829) 2.74
Cancelec (84,96)) 20.3¢t
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,045,121 $ 12.1¢ 71 $ 9.€
I
Vested or Expected to Vest at September 30, 2,972,29. $ 11.9¢ 7C % 9.€
I
Exercisable at September 30, 2( 1,831,31 $ 7.0C 6C $ 9.€
I

There were options available for grantpuechase 1,328,922 shares of Common Stock und@0tve Stock Plan at September 30, 2007.
The Company granted 630,000 additional options utide2004 Stock Plan to management in October 20@7Avill seek shareholder appro
to add 1,750,000 shares of Common Stock to beablaifor future grants under the 2004 Stock Pldre Weighted-average grant date fair
values of stock options granted during 2007, 20662005 were $10.06, $9.08 and $5.37, respectiély.intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during 2007 and 2006 was $5.7 million®t@i6 million, respectively. At September 30, 202 Company had $10.3 million of
excess tax benefits available for potential detetax write-offs related to option accounting.
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Details regarding options to purchase comstock outstanding as of September 30, 2007 dialaws:

Weighted

Range of

Average

Options Exercise Contractual Options
Outstanding Prices Life in Years Exercisable

1,156,19. $ 0.3(-$2.7: 5.3 1,156,19
30,00C $ 8.1£-$10.8" 7.C 30,00(
447,33 $ 10.87-$13.5¢ 7.1 308,49¢
68,75( $ 13.5¢-$16.3( 7.5 55,25(
564,15 $ 16.3(-$19.0: 8.C 178,38t
741,44 $ 21.74-$24.4¢ 9.C 90,23«
37,25( $ 24.45-$27.17 8.4 12,75(
Total 3,045,121 1,831,311
I I

Special CEO Options Grant

The Company granted stock options to iesilent and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in OctoB@03 under an executive securities
agreement. The grant included options to purch@5¢050 shares of common stock at fair value andsehsduled to vest over two years. In
January 2004, the Company and the CEO amendegéiseabpurchase option agreement to increase tmbeuof shares that could be
purchased under the options to 612,366 shares.&unehdment did not change the exercise price, achil term or vesting of the original
award. Under this grant, the exercise price mugidie in cash, unless the Company permits otherwise options expire on October 20, 2013
and became fully vested after the completion ofGbenpany's IPO. These options were not grantedrithdeCompany's 1998 Stock Plan or
2004 Stock Plan. Options to purchase 150,000 shewsr this grant were exercised in December 208ieaime of the Company's secondary
stock offering, leaving 462,366 options outstandinger the special CEO grant at September 30, 266 722006.

12. Benefit Plans

The Company maintains defined contribufians covering all fultime employees of the Company who have 90 daysrefce (one ye:
of service for 2005 and prior) and are at leasyedrs old. An eligible employee may elect to makefre-tax contribution of between 1% and
100% (15% for 2005 and prior) of his or her compias through payroll deductions, not to exceedateual limit set by law ($15,500 for
2007). The Company currently matches the first ®%articipant contributions limited to 6% of a pi@ipant's gross compensation (maximum
Company match is 3%). All Company contributions subject to management's discretion. The expemshifoplan was $4,485 in 2007,
$4,579 in 2006 and $3,387 in 2005.

The Company also contributes to an extgueakion fund for certain of its employees who bglto a local union. Annual contributions
were $116, $82, and $74 in 2007, 2006, and 20@pexctively.
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13. Income Taxes

The income tax provision consists of thiéofeing:

Fiscal year
2007 2006 2005
Current:

Federal $ 9,03t % 24,48¢ $ 15,02t
Foreign 2,48( 2,51( 2,33t
State 3,83¢ 6,03t 3,72(
15,35! 33,03 21,08(

Deferred:
Federal 1,34¢ (1,212 73C
Foreign (22) 39 19
State 417 (331) 147
1,744 (1,509 89¢

$ 17,09t $ 31,52¢ $ 21,97¢

The following table shows the principalseas for the difference between the effective inedax rate and the statutory federal incom:
rate:

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005
Federal income taxes at statutory | 35.0% 35.0(% 35.0(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 6.0¢ 4.,5¢ 4.6(
Foreign income tax rate different 0.21 0.1z 0.1¢
Non-deductible meals and entertainm 1.1¢€ 0.3¢€ 0.3
Income tax reserve (0.77) (2.15) —
Other (1.47) 0.07 (0.09
Total 40.3% 39.0% 40.0%%

The components of the Company's defernesktare as follows:

September 30 September 30
2007 2006
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess tax over book depreciation and amortiz: $ 37,89t $ 21,73:
Foreign currency translation adjustm 3,472 —
Other — 251
41,36¢ 21,98t¢
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensatic 4,871 3,152
Allowance for doubtful accoun 3,951 2,45¢
Accrued vacation & othe 2,457 1,341
Foreign tax credit carryovt 51 94
Inventory valuatior 6,73¢ 6,82

18,07 13,86¢




Net deferred income tax liabilitie $ 23,29 $ 8,11¢
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The Company made tax payments of $20,92007, $19,296 in 2006, and $19,843 in 2005. Ir72@006, and 2005, the Company had
reductions in income taxes payable of $2,286, $&8 $2,060, respectively, as a result of stodlopgexercises.

The Company has operations in 34 U.S. statel three provinces in Canada and is subjeaktaudits in each of these jurisdictions and
federally in both the United States and Canadas@&laeidits may involve complex issues, which mayirecan extended period of time to
resolve. The Company has provided for its estirn&taxes payable in the accompanying financiabstants. Additional taxes are reasonably
possible, however the amounts cannot be estimatbdsdime.

14. Related-Party Transactions

As mentioned in Note 10, the Company ledse=e buildings from its former Chairman and cotrirector for an aggregate of
approximately $0.6 million in 2007 and 2006 ands®@illion in 2005.

15. Contingencies

The Company is subject to loss contingenpigsuant to various federal, state and localrenmental laws and regulations; however, the
Company is not aware of any reasonably possibkekthat would have a material impact on its re@flbperations, financial position, or
liquidity. Potential loss contingencies include gibte obligations to remove or mitigate the effemsthe environment of the placement,
storage, disposal or release of certain chemicathmr substances by the Company or by other patticonnection with its acquisitions, the
Company has been indemnified for any and all knemvironmental liabilities as of the respective daitacquisition. Historically,
environmental liabilities have not had a matemapact on the Company's results of operations, Gihposition or liquidity.

The Company is subject to litigation frome to time in the ordinary course of business, éav the Company does not expect the re
if any, to have a material adverse impact on isilte of operations, financial position or liquidit

16. Geographic and Product Data

In accordance with the enterprise-wide ldsare requirements of SFAS No. 131, the Compagsographic and product information is as
follows:

Year Ended
September 30, 200 September 30, 2001 September 24, 200!
Property Property Property

Income and Income and Income and
Net before Equipment, Net before Equipment, Net before Equipment,

Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net
u.s. $ 153961 $ 35,15: $ 62,30 $ 1,397,15 $ 73,77¢ % 52,767 $ 762,64( $ 48,20 % 25,67+
Canada 106,16t 7,222 7,45(C 103,48: 7,061 6,52¢ 88,28¢ 6,68¢ 6,09:
Total $ 1,645,78 $ 4237  $ 69,75: $ 1,500,63 $ 80,84( $ 59,29: % 850,92t $ 54,89: $ 31,767
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Net revenues to external customers by progioup:

Year Ended
September 30 September 30 September 24
2007 2006 2005
Residential roofing produc $ 699,27¢ $ 731,70: $ 346,29:
Non-residential roofing produc 591,90! 448,04 305,60«
Complementary building produc 354,60: 320,89: 199,03:
Total $ 1,645,78! $ 1,500,63 $ 850,92¢

17. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The activity in the allowance for doubtidcounts consisted of the following:

Balance at

beginning Provision Balance at
Fiscal Year of year Additions Write-offs end of year
September 30, 20( $ 502C $ 791¢ $ (4,966) $ 7,97(
September 30, 20( $ 4,10¢ $ 4,65¢ $ (3740 $ 5,0
September 24, 20( $ 295¢ % 3,331 $ (2,185 $ 4,10/

18. Financial Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial unsients for hedging and non-trading purposes to geita exposure to changes in interest
rates. Use of derivative financial instruments éudging programs subjects the Company to certdis,r@ich as market and credit risks. Market
risk represents the possibility that the valuehef derivative instrument will change. In a hedgielgtionship, the change in the value of the
derivative is offset to a great extent by the cleaimgthe value of the underlying hedged item. Gresk related to derivatives represents the
possibility that the counterparty will not fulfithe terms of the contract. The notional, or cortralc amount of the Company's derivative
financial instruments is used to measure integebetpaid or received and does not represent thgp@oy's exposure due to credit risk. The
Company's current derivative instruments are wathnterparties rated very highly by nationally regiagd credit rating agencies.

The Company utilizes interest rate derixatnstruments to manage the risk of interestehsmges by converting a portion of its variable-
rate borrowings into fixedate borrowings. There were interest rate derieaitistruments outstanding in a total notional an@fii$300 millior
at September 30, 2007, which consisted of: a)éstaate swaps totaling $200 million, expiring iprih2010, with a fixed rate of 4.97%; b) a
$50 million interest rate collar expiring in ApeD10 with a floor rate of 3.99% and a a cap ratg. ©5%; and c) a $50 million interest rate
collar expiring in April 2010 with a floor rate 8f75% and a cap rate of 6.00%. The combined féirevaf the agreements resulted in a
recorded liability of approximately $2.1 million &eptember 30, 2007, which was determined basedment interest rates and expected ft
trends. The Company entered into these instruntemisg the second quarter of 2007 and cancellegtioe interest rate derivative instrume
that had notional amounts totaling $150 millioneTdurrent derivative instruments are designatezhsk flow hedges, for which the Company
records the effective portions of changes in tfairvalue, net of tax, in other comprehensive meo Any ineffective portion of the hedges is
recognized in earnings, of which there has beer towlate. The prior derivative instruments weredesignated as hedges and therefore
changes in their fair values were recorded in @deexpense.
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
1. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation uf chief executive officer and chief financial o, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduledRl3a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)f &eptember 3l
2007. Based on this evaluation, our chief executffieer and chief financial officer concluded thas of September 30, 2007, our disclosure
controls and procedures were (1) designed to erlsatenaterial information relating to Beacon RagfSupply, Inc., including its consolida
subsidiaries, is made known to our chief executiffieer and chief financial officer by others withihose entities, particularly during the
period in which this report was being prepared @)cffective, in that they provide reasonable emsce that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or siilmder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 i®reed, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms.

2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(@) Management's Annual Report on Internal Contol Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)1d¥d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeofAd934 as a process designed b
under the supervision of, the company's principatcative and principal financial officers, and etisd by the company's board of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and theduthose policies and procedures that:

. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtdle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of t
assets of the company;

. Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@aled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptiess and that receipts and expenditures of tinepemy are being made ot
in accordance with authorizations of managementdinedtors of the company; and

. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effetite financial statements.

Our internal control system was designegrtvide reasonable assurance to our managemetaand of Directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of publishedrfoial statements. All internal control systemsmetter how well designed, have inherent
limitations which may not prevent or detect missta¢nts. Therefore, even those systems determiresl eéffective can provide only reason:
assurance with respect to financial statement patgipa and presentation. Projections of any evalnaif effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or thadeéhyeee of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Our assessment of and conclusion on tleetfEness of our internal control over financeggorting did not include the internal control:
North Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, Inc., whige acquired in 2007 and included in our 200%obdated financial statements. Tl
acquired company constituted 18.4% and 36.1% af totd net assets, respectively, as of Septembh&080, and 9.3% and 4.7% of revenues
and net income, respectively, for the year therednd

Our management assessed the effectivehess imternal controls over financial reportinga&sSeptember 30, 2007. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth indat€ontrol-Integrated Framework issued by the Catemof Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our assessmefelieve that, as of September 30, 2007, darnal control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our Independent Registered Public Accognimm has issued a report on the Company's inteordrol over financial reporting. This
report appears below.

(b) Attestation Report of the Independent Regigtred Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited Beacon Roofing Supply,'drinternal control over financial reporting asSefptember 30, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s mamagnt is responsible for maintaining effective ing control over financial reporting, a
for its assessment of the effectiveness of interaatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management's Annual Repor
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the compsaiyternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsitatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssaubject
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to the risk that controls may become inadequataumof changes in conditions, or that the dedreeropliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Managetadtnual Report on Internal Control over Finan&alporting, management's assessment o

and conclusion on the effectiveness of internatrmbiover financial reporting did not include theernal controls of North Coast Commercial
Roofing Systems, Inc., which were acquired in 280@ included in the 2007 consolidated financiaiesteents of Beacon Roof Supply, Inc.
constituted 18.4% and 36.1% of total and net assegpectively, as of September 30, 2007 and 913341a7% of revenues and net income,
respectively, for the year then ended. Our audintgfrnal control over financial reporting of Beadaoofing Supply, Inc. also did not include
an evaluation of the internal control over finahcégporting of North Coast Commercial Roofing Sysse Inc.

In our opinion, Beacon Roofing Supply, In@intained, in all material respects, effectieiinal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Beacon Roofing $upm. as of September 30, 2007 and Septembe2(®B and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders' equity and cehgnsive income, and cash flows for each of treetlgears in the period ended
September 30, 2007 and our report dated Novemhe&@@7 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
November 27, 200

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over finil reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) 46d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Ac
1934) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended&rpéer 30, 2007 that has materially affected, oedsonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Our by-laws were amended and restated areidber 27, 2007, as filed as Exhibit 3.2 to thisnka0-K, to allow for the issuance of
uncertificated shares of stock.
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PART IlI

This part of our Form 10-K, which includésms 10 through 14, is omitted because we w#l @iéfinitive proxy material pursuant to
Regulation 14A not more than 120 days after theeclaf our year-end, which proxy material will indéuthe information required by Items 10
through 14 and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(@) (1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements of owr@pany and Report of the Independent RegistereticPdutxounting Firm are included in
Part II, Item 8 of this Report:

. Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm
. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 3@,&00September 30, 2006
. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded September 30, 2007, September 30, 200G eptdmber 24, 20C

. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equityiferyears ended September 30, 2007, Septemb2036, anc
September 24, 2005.

. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraled September 30, 2007, September 30, 200G eptdmber 24, 2005

. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have beettazhfiecause they are either not applicable oreaired information has been disclosed ir
financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
Exhibits are set forth on the attached leikimdex.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, réegistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC
(REGISTRANT)

By: /s/ DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Chief Financial and Accounting Offic
Date: November 28, 20(

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ ROBERT R. BUCK Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Novemb&y 2007

Robert R. Bucl

/s/ DAVID R. GRACE Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer November 28, 2007
and Chief Accounting Officer
David R. Grace
/s/ ANDREW R. LOGIE Director November 28, 2007

Andrew R. Logie

/s/ H. ARTHUR BELLOWS, JR. Director November 28, 2007

H. Arthur Bellows, Jr

/sl JAMES J. GAFFNEY Director November 28, 2007

James J. Gaffne

/s/ PETER M. GOTSCH Director November 28, 2007

Peter M. Gotscl

/s/ WILSON B. SEXTON Director November 28, 2007

Wilson B. Sextor

/s/ STUART A. RANDLE Director November 28, 2007

Stuart A. Randl
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER

3.1

3.2

41

10.1

10.z

10.c

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.€

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Irzatipn of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (incorpothtesrein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Beacon Roofing Suppig,'s annual report on Form 10-K for the year enBeptember 25,
2004)

Amended and Restated -Laws of Beacon Roofing Supply, Ir

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of BeaRonfing Supply, Inc. (incorporated herein by refeze to Exhibit
4.1 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Registratitet&Snent on -1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))

Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, geded November 2, 2006, among Beacon Sales Atiguisinc., as
borrower, Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc., as one ef@uarantors, the Lenders and L/C Issuers partgtiveand General
Electric Capital Corporation, as Administrative Agand Collateral Agent (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.1 of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s current report omi&-K filed November 3, 2006

Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Aggag dated as of November 2, 2006, among Beacofirigo
Supply Canada Company, GE Canada Finance Holdingp@oy and the financial institutions party ther@aorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Beacon Roofing Sypimc's current report on Forn-K filed November 3, 2006

Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock Famck Option Agreement for all employees, inclgdéxecutive
officers who are not directors (incorporated byerence to Exhibit 10.3 to Beacon Roofing Supplg, 'thannual report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended September 30, 200

Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock F8émck Option Agreement for non-employee direc{orsorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 200¢

Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock Famck Option Agreement for employee directorsdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Beacon Roofing Suppig,'s annual report on Form 10-K for the yearegh8eptember 30,
2006).*

Employment Agreement dated as of October 20, 2¢0&nkl between Robert Buck and Beacon Sales Aciquisinc. d/b/i
Beacon Sales Company (incorporated herein by mederto Exhibit 10.2 to Beacon Roofing Supply, m&egistration
Statement on Form-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027)*

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of Mgy2004 by and between Robert Buck and Beacon Sales
Acquisition, Inc. d/b/a Beacon Sales Company (ipocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to BeaRoofing Supply,
Inc.'s Registration Statement on For-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027)*

Amendment dated February 15, 2006 to the Employgreement between Robert R. Buck and Beacon Sales

Acquisition, Inc. (incorporated herein by referencéxhibit 10.1 to Beacon Roofing Supply Inc.'sreat report on Form
8-K filed February 21, 2006)
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10.€

10.1(

10.11

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated Octobe@87 by and between Robert Buck and Beacon Salgsigition
Inc. d/b/a Beacon Sales Company (incorporated ménereference to Exhibit 10.1 to Beacon Roofing@y, Inc.'s currer
report on Form -K filed on October 26, 2007).

Chief Executive Securities Agreement dated as gfusti21, 1997 by and between Beacon Roofing Supmty (formerly
known as Beacon Holding Corporation), Andrew Logiel Code, Hennessy & Simmons lll, L.P. (incorpatdterein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Beacon Roofing Suppig,'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reagisin No. 333-
116027)

Executive Securities Agreement dated as of OctaBeR003 by and between Beacon Roofing Supply, Rabert Buck
and Code, Hennessy & Simmons Ill, L.P. (incorpatdterein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to BeaconfiRgoSupply, Inc.'
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (Registration No. 3:--116027)



10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

21

23.1

31.1

31.z

32.1

32.2

Amendment to Executive Securities Agreement daseaf danuary 28, 2004 by and between Beacon Ro8fipgly, Inc.,
Robert Buck and Code, Hennessy & Simmons I, (iftorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8eacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Fo-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027)

1998 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by refereadexhibit 4.1 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s R#gition Statement «
Form -8 (Registration No. 3:-119747))*

2004 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by refereadexhibit 4.2 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Régition Statement «
Form -8 (Registration No. 3:-119747))*

Amended and Restated Special Purchase Option Agrgastated January 28, 2004 by and between Beacoiingo
Supply, Inc. and Robert Buck (incorporated hergimeference to Exhibit 10.10 to Beacon Roofing Sypimc.'s
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))*

Amendment of Chief Executive Securities Agreemdated as of September 20, 2004 by and among thep&@omAndrev
R. Logie, and Code, Hennessy & Simmons lll, L.Rcdrporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.Béacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s current report on Fori-K filed September 24, 200.

Description of Management Cash Bonus Plan (incatedrherein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to BeacAnnual Report
on Form 1-K for the year ended September 24, 20(

Subsidiaries of Beacon Roofing Supply, |

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registdtablic Accounting Firn
CEO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
CFO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
CEO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

CFO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z

*

Compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Amended and Restated
By-laws
of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

ARTICLE 1—OFFICES

1.1 Registered Offices. The registered office of Beacon Roofing Suppig, (the "Corporation”) in the State of Delawalall be
located at 2711 Centreville Road, Suite 400, inGftg of Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaw&ak®808. The name of the Corporation's
registered agent at such address shall be Theid¢&rétéll Corporation System, Inc. The registerefitefand/or registered agent of the
Corporation may be changed from time to time byoacof the Board of Directors.

1.2 Other Offices. The Corporation may also have offices at subkrgplaces both within and without the State ofaldare as the
Board of Directors may from time to time determarehe business of the Corporation may require.

1.3 Books. The books of the Corporation may be kept withinvithout of the State of Delaware as the Bodricectors may from
time to time determine or the business of the Catmn may require.

ARTICLE 2—STOCKHOLDERS

2.1 Place of Meetings. All meetings of stockholders shall be heldwtsplace within or without the State of Delawaseveay be
designated from time to time by the Board of Dicestor the Chief Executive Officer (or, if therenis Chief Executive Officer, the President)
or, if not so designated, at the registered offitthe Corporation.

2.2 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of stockholders for thetedaof directors and for the transaction of suttheo business as
may properly be brought before the meeting shaliddd on such date and at such time and at suck plahin or without the state of Delaw:
as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, puntia a resolution adopted by the affirmative voft@ majority of the total number of directors
then in office, or the Chief Executive Officer (dfrthere is no Chief Executive Officer, the Presit) and stated in the notice of the meeting. If
no annual meeting is held in accordance with tihegoing provisions, the Board of Directors shallsmthe meeting to be held as soon
thereafter as convenient. If no annual meetingeld m accordance with the foregoing provisionspacial meeting may be held in lieu of the
annual meeting, and any action taken at that spmeating shall have the same effect as if it heelbtaken at the annual meeting, and in such
case all references in these By-Laws to the armeating of stockholders shall be deemed to refsuth special meeting.

2.3 Special Meeting. Special meetings of stockholders may be calteahy time by only the Chairman of the Board afebiors, the
Chief Executive Officer (or, if there is no Chiet&cutive Officer, the President) or by the Boardakctors of the Corporation pursuant to a
resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of aoniéy of the total number of directors then in offi Any business transacted at any special
meeting of stockholders shall be limited to mattetating to the purpose or purposes stated imétiee of meeting.

2.4 Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law, writteticeof each meeting of stockholders, whether ahoua
special, shall be given not less than ten (10)mare than sixty (60) days before the date of theting to each stockholder entitled to vote at
such meeting. The notices of all meetings shatédtse place, date and hour of the meeting. Thieaof a special
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meeting shall state, in addition, the purpose opgses for which the meeting is called. If mailedtice is given when deposited in the United
States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the btudkr at his or her address as it appears oretteeds of the Corporation.

2.5 Voting List. The officer who has charge of the stock ledgehe Corporation shall prepare, at least ten @3k before every
meeting of stockholders, a complete list of theldtmlders entitled to vote at the meeting, arrarigeadphabetical order, and showing the
address of each stockholder and the number of shegéstered in the name of each stockholder. 8sicéhall be open to the examination of
any stockholder, for any purpose germane to thdinggaluring ordinary business hours, for a pepnbdt least ten (10) days prior to the
meeting, at the principal place of business ofGbeporation. The list shall also be produced art kéthe time and place of the meeting
during the whole time of the meeting, and may Ispétted by any stockholder who is present.

2.6 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Gedte of Incorporation or these By-Laws, the haddafra majority of the
shares of the capital stock of the Corporationedsand outstanding and entitled to vote at the imggtresent in person or represented by
proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transactbbusiness.

2.7 Adjournments. Any meeting of stockholders may be adjournedny other time and to any other place at whicheating of
stockholders may be held under these By-Laws byjanity of the stockholders present or represeatdtie meeting and entitled to vote,
although less than a quorum, or, if no stockholgi@resent, by any officer entitled to presideraiboact as Secretary of such meeting. It shall
not be necessary to notify any stockholder of atjgirnment of less than thirty (30) days if thediend place of the adjourned meeting are
announced at the meeting at which adjournmenkentaunless after the adjournment a new recordigdibeed for the adjourned meeting. At
the adjourned meeting, the Corporation may trarsagtusiness that might have been transactee atitjinal meeting.

2.8 Voting and Proxies. Except as otherwise provided by the Generap@uation Law of the State of Delaware, the Cerdifécof
Incorporation or these By-Laws, each stockholdatl$tave one vote for each share of capital statitled to vote and held of record by such
stockholder. To the extent permitted by law, edobldolder of record entitled to vote at a meetifigtockholders may vote in person or may
authorize another person or persons to vote dioattim or her by proxy, which proxy may be autlzed in writing, by telephone or by
electronic means by the stockholder or his or hén@ized agent. No such proxy shall be voted techapon after three years from the date of
its execution, unless the proxy expressly provides longer period.

2.9 Proxy Representation. Every stockholder may authorize another pemsqgrersons to act for him or her by proxy in allttees in
which a stockholder is entitled to participate, tiee by waiving notice of any meeting, objectingtovoting or participating at a meeting, or
expressing consent or dissent without a meeting.ddtivery of a proxy on behalf of a stockholdensistent with telephonic or electronically
transmitted instructions obtained pursuant to pdaces of the Corporation reasonably designed tifyérat such stockholder has authorized
such instructions shall constitute execution artveley of the proxy by or on behalf of the stocktet. A duly executed proxy shall be
irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable aridand only as long as, it is coupled with atemest sufficient in law to support an irrevocable
power. A proxy may be made irrevocable regardlésghether the interest with which it is coupledisinterest in the stock itself or an interest
in the Corporation generally. The authorizatioragfroxy may but need not be limited to specifietiba¢ provided, however, that if a proxy
limits its authorization to a meeting or meetin§stockholders, unless otherwise specifically pded such proxy shall entitle the holder
thereof to vote at any adjourned session but sisalbe valid after the final adjournment thereofpraxy purporting to be authorized by or on
behalf of a stockholder, if accepted by the Corfionain its discretion, shall be
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deemed valid unless challenged at or prior toxes@se, and the burden of proving invalidity slialit on the challenger.

2.10 Action at Meeting. When a quorum is present at any meeting, aliyiof the votes properly cast for election ty arfice shall
elect to such office and a majority of the votesgerly cast upon any question other than an eletti@n office shall decide the question,
except when a larger vote is required by law, eyGertificate of Incorporation or by these By-lai®. ballot shall be required for any election
unless requested by a stockholder present or repesb at the meeting and entitled to vote in teetin.

2.11 Nomination of Directors. Only persons who are hominated in accordantte thé following procedures shall be eligible for
election as directors. The nomination for electimthe Board of Directors of the Corporation at@eting of stockholders may be made by the
Board of Directors or by any stockholder (i) whaistockholder of record on the date of the givihgotice provided for in thiSection 2.11
and on the record date for the determination afldtolders entitled to vote at the Corporation'sumhimeeting and (ii) who complies with the
notice procedures set forth in ti8gction 2.11 Such nominations, other than those made by dretwalf of the Board of Directors, shall be
made by notice in writing delivered or mailed bisficlass United States mail, postage prepaidieédsecretary, and received at the principal
executive offices of the Corporation not less tharety (90) days nor more than one hundred twel®@) days prior to the anniversary date of
the immediately preceding annual meeting of stotdérs;provided, howevethat if the annual meeting is not held within thi(80) days
before or after such anniversary date, then suatimation shall have been delivered to or mailed r@eeived by the Secretary not later than
the close of business on the 10th day followingdate on which the notice of the meeting was mailesiuich public disclosure was made,
whichever occurs first. Such notice shall set f¢ehas to each proposed nominee (i) the name pageess address and, if known, residence
address of each such nominee, (ii) the principalipation or employment of each such nominee tfig)number of shares of stock of the
Corporation which are beneficially owned by eacthsmominee, and (iv) any other information conaggrthe nominee that must be disclosed
as to nominees in proxy solicitations pursuantegiation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adt9#¥4, as amended, including such
person's written consent to be named as a nomitetoaserve as a director if elected; and (b) akacstockholder giving the notice (i) the
name and address, as they appear on the Corpasdimoks, of such stockholder and (ii) the claskraimber of shares of the Corporation
which are beneficially owned by such stockholdére Torporation may require any proposed nomindertish such other information as v
reasonably be required by the Corporation to deterrie eligibility of such proposed nominee toveess a director of the Corporation.

The chairman of the meeting may, if thedagarrant, determine and declare to the meetiagamomination was not made in accordance
with the foregoing procedure, and if he or she &hea determine, he or she shall so declare toneting and the defective nomination shall
be disregarded.

2.12 Notice of Business at Annual MeetingsAt an annual meeting of the stockholders, @uigh business shall be conducted as shall
have been properly brought before the meeting.é& prbperly brought before an annual meeting, bssineust be (a) specified in the notice of
meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by ehatirection of the Board of Directors, (b) othamsvproperly brought before the meeting by
or at the direction of the Board of Directors, oy §therwise properly brought before an annual mgdty a stockholder (i) who is a stockhol
of record on the date of the giving of notice pd®d for in thisSection 2.12nd on the record date for the determination afldtolders entitle:
to vote at such annual election, and (ii) who caegplvith the notice procedures set forth in éxtion 2.12 For business to be properly
brought before an annual meeting by a stockholfisuch business relates to the election of dinsoctd the Corporation, the procedures in
Section 2.1Imust be complied with. If such business relatesntpother matter, the stockholder must have giirealy notice thereof in writin
to the Secretary. To be timely, a stockholder'sceanust




be delivered to or mailed and received at the palexecutive offices of the Corporation not lé#san ninety (90) days nor more than one
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the anniversiate of the immediately preceding annual meetingtaékholdersprovided, howeverthat if

the annual meeting is not held within thirty (3@)yd before or after such anniversary date, thethfonotice by the stockholder to be timely it
must be so received not later than the close dhbas on the 10th day following the date on whighrotice of the meeting was mailed or s
public disclosure was made, whichever occurs firstbe in proper written form, a stockholder's cetio the Secretary shall set forth as to each
matter the stockholder proposes to bring beforatimeial meeting (a) a brief description of the bess desired to be brought before the annual
meeting and the reasons for conducting such busatethe annual meeting, (b) the name and addisesbey appear on the Corporation's
books, of the stockholder proposing such busir(e$she class and number of shares of the Cormorathich are beneficially owned by the
stockholder, (d) any material interest of the staatller in such business and (e) a representatairstith stockholder intends to appear in
person or by proxy at the annual meeting to bringhsusiness before the meeting. Notwithstandiryghamg in these By-Laws to the contrary,
no business shall be conducted at any annual ngestitept in accordance with the procedures sdt forthisSection 2.12 except that any
stockholder proposal which complies with Rule Bdaf the proxy rules, or any successor provisisonqulgated under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended, and is to be includetiéenQorporation’s proxy statement for an annual imgetf stockholders shall be deemed to
comply with the requirements of thBection 2.12

The chairman of the meeting shall, if thet§ warrant, determine and declare to the meéiaigousiness was not properly brought before
the meeting in accordance with the provisions & 8ection 2.12 and if he or she should so determine, the chairshall so declare to the
meeting and any such business not properly brdugfore the meeting shall not be transacted.

2.13 Action without Meeting. Stockholders may not take any action by writtensent in lieu of a meeting.

2.14 Organization. The Chairman of the Board, or in his or heresloge the President shall call meetings of the iolders to order,
and act as chairman of such meetipgivided, howevethat the Board of Directors may appoint any stoddtéioto act as chairman of any
meeting in the absence of the Chairman of the Bddrd Secretary of the Corporation shall act asetaxy at all meetings of the stockholders;
provided, howeve, that in the absence of the Secretary at any ngeefithe stockholders, the acting chairman mayag@ny person to act as
secretary of the meeting.

ARTICLE 3—DIRECTORS

3.1 General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporatioti fieamanaged by or under the direction of a Badrirectors,
who may exercise all of the powers of the Corporaéixcept as otherwise provided by law, the Cedié of Incorporation or these By-Laws.
In the event of a vacancy in the Board of Directtiie remaining directors, except as otherwiseigeal/by law, may exercise the powers of
full Board of Directors until the vacancy is filled

3.2 Number; Election and Qualification. The number of directors that shall constith&whole Board of Directors shall be determ
by resolution of the Board of Directors, but inex@ent shall be less than three. The directors bleatllected at the annual meeting of
stockholders by such stockholders as have the tagitdte on such election. The directors need eaitbckholders of the Corporation.

3.3 Vacancies. Any vacancy in the Board of Directors, howewecurring, including a vacancy resulting from aoréase in the
number of the Board of Directors, may be filledvmge of a majority of the directors then in offi@though less than a quorum, or by a sole
remaining director. A director




elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office untietnext annual meeting of stockholders, subjettig¢celection and qualification of his or her
successor and to his or her earlier death, resggnat removal.

3.4 Resignation. Any director may resign by delivering his or gitten resignation to the Corporation at itsngipal office or to the
President or Secretary. Such resignation shalffeeta/e upon receipt unless it is specified toelffective at some other time or upon the
happening of some other event.

3.5 Regular Meetings. The regular meetings of the Board of Directaesy be held without notice at such time and plaitber within
or without the State of Delaware, as shall be deitezd from time to time by the Board of Directopsgvided, that any director who is absent
when such a determination is made shall be givéiocenof the determination. A regular meeting of Bward of Directors may be held without
notice immediately after and at the same placb@aannual meeting of stockholders.

3.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors rbayheld at any time and place, within or withowt 8tate of
Delaware, designated in a call by the ChairmamefBoard of Directors, the Chief Executive Offiger if there is no Chief Executive Officer,
the President), two or more directors or by onedlor in the event that there is only a singledoein office.

3.7 Notice of Special Meetings. Notice of any special meeting of the Board akbtors, unless waived, shall be given to eachotir
by the Secretary or by the officer or one of thectiors calling the meeting. The notice shall bly diven to each director (i) by giving notice
to such director in person or by telephone at le@sity four (24) hours in advance of the meet{iigby sending a facsimile, or delivering
written notice by hand, to his or her last knowsibass or home address at least twenty four (24fshio advance of the meeting, or (iii) by
mailing written notice to his or her last known Imgss or home address at least seventy two (72§ mo@advance of the meeting. A notice or
waiver of notice of a special meeting of the Boafr®irectors need not specify the purposes of teeting.

3.8 Meetings by Telephone Conference Call§ he Board of Directors or any members of anymittee of the Board of Directors
designated by the directors may participate in atmg of the Board of Directors or such committgenteans of conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of whitipersons participating in the meeting can heaheother. Participation by such means
shall constitute presence in person at such meeting

3.9 Quorum. A majority of the total number of the whole Bdaf Directors shall constitute a quorum at alletivegs of the Board of
Directors. In the event one or more of the directirall be disqualified to vote at any meetingnttiee required quorum shall be reduced by
for each such director so disqualifigapvided, howeverthat in no case shall less than one-thitd{) of the number of directors so fixed
constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quoruamasuch meeting, a majority of the directors pneseay adjourn the meeting from time to
time without further notice, other than announcenatrthe meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

3.10 Action at Meeting. At any meeting of the Board of Directors at @tha quorum is present, the vote of a majorityhoke present
shall be sufficient to take any action, unlessfedint vote is specified by law, the Certificafdmcorporation or these By-Laws.

3.11 Action by Consent. Any action required or permitted to be takearat meeting of the Board of Directors or of anyncaittee of
the Board of Directors may be taken without a nmggtif all members of the Board or committee, asdase may be, consent to the action in
writing, and the written consents are filed witle thinutes of proceedings of the Board of Directarsommittee of the Board of Directors, as
applicable.




3.12 Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution pddsg a majority of the whole Board, designate onmore
committees, each committee to consist of one oembthe directors of the Corporation appointedi®/Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors may designate one or more directorstasrate members of any committee, who may replagebsent or disqualified member at
any meeting of the committee. Any such committeghe extent provided in the resolution of the Bloafr Directors and subject to the
provisions of the General Corporation Law of that&f Delaware, shall have and may exercise alptiwers and authority of the Board of
Directors in the management of the business amdraff the Corporation and may authorize the setile Corporation to be affixed to all
papers which may require it. Each such committedl keep minutes and make such reports as the Bddddrectors may from time to time
request. Except as the Board of Directors may atiserdetermine, any committee may make rules ferctinduct of its business, but unless
otherwise provided by the directors or in suchspies business shall be conducted as nearly adipp@én the same manner as is provided in
these By-Laws for the Board of Directors.

3.13 Compensation of Directors. The directors may be paid such compensatiothg&r services and such reimbursement for expe
of attendance at meetings as the Board of Direchang from time to time determine. No such payméatlgreclude any director from serving
the Corporation or any of its parent or subsid@gporations in any other capacity and receivinggensation for such service.

ARTICLE 4—OFFICERS

4.1 Enumeration. The officers of the Corporation shall consisadhief Executive Officer, a President, a Chiefdfcial Officer, a
Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directarg appoint other officers with such titles and posas it may deem appropriate, including,
without limitation, one or more Vice Presidents am& or more Controllers.

4.2 Election. The Chief Executive Officer, President, Chiefdncial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer shakleeted annually by the
Board of Directors at its first meeting followiniget annual meeting of stockholders. Other officeay lve appointed by the Board of Directors
at such meeting or at any other meeting.

4.3 Qualification. No officer need be a stockholder of the Corpora Any two or more offices may be held by thensgperson.

4.4 Tenure. Except as otherwise provided by law, by theti@emte of Incorporation or by these By-Laws, eadficer shall hold
office until his or her successor is elected analifiad, unless a different term is specified ie thote choosing or appointing him or her, or t
his or her earlier death, resignation or removal.

4.5 Resignation and Removal.Any officer may resign by delivering his or heritten resignation to the Corporation at its pipal
office or to the Chief Executive Officer or SecrgteSuch resignation shall be effective upon retceipess it is specified to be effective at sc
other time or upon the happening of some otherteyeary officer may be removed at any time, withwithout cause, by vote of a majority of
the entire number of directors then in office.

Except as the Board of Directors may otlegvdetermine, no officer who resigns or is remosfeall have any right to any compensation
as an officer for any period following his or hesignation or removal, or any right to damagesamoant of such removal, whether his of her
compensation be by the month or by the year omailke, unless such compensation is expressly peoviid a duly authorized written
agreement with the Corporation.

4.6 Vacancies. The Board of Directors may fill any vacancy oeing in any office for any reason and may, indiscretion, leave
unfilled for such period as it may determine anfyces other than those of Chief Executive Offid@resident, Secretary and Treasurer. Each
such successor shall




hold office for the unexpired term of his or heegecessor and until his or her successor is electédjualified, or until his or her earlier de¢
resignation or removal.

4.7 Chairman of the Board. The Board of Directors may appoint a Chairmathe Board. If the Board of Directors appoints a
Chairman of the Board, he or she shall perform slutles and possess such powers as are assighma to her by the Board of Directors.

4.8 Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall, subject e direction of the Board of Directors, have gehehnarge
and supervision of the business of the Corporatibriess otherwise provided by the Board of Direstbie or she shall preside at all meetings
of the stockholders and, if he or she is a dire@ball meetings of the Board of Directors. TheeCExecutive Officer shall perform such other
duties and possess such other powers as the BbRitkotors may from time to time prescribe.

4.9 President. The President shall perform such duties andgxsssuch powers as the Board of Directors or kief Executive
Officer may from time to time prescribe. In the pwvef the absence, inability or refusal to actref Chief Executive Officer, the President shall
perform the duties of the Chief Executive Officadavhen so performing shall have all the poweraraf be subject to all the restrictions upon
the office of Chief Executive Officer.

4.10 Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall perform sudilties and possess such powers as the Board aft@rise
or the Chief Executive Officer may from time to &@rprescribe. The Chief Financial Officer shall h#tve custody of the corporate funds and
securities; shall keep full and accurate all boakd accounts of the Corporation as shall be negessaesirable in accordance with applicable
law or generally accepted accounting principlesjlsteposit all monies and other valuable effeatde name and to the credit of the
Corporation as may be ordered by the ChairmaneoBtbard or the Board of Directors; shall causeftinels of the Corporation to be disbursed
when such disbursements have been duly authotialkidg proper vouchers for such disbursementssaiatl render to the Board of Directors,
at its regular meeting or when the Board of Direx&o requires, an account of the Corporation.

4.11 Vice Presidents. Any Vice President shall perform such dutied passess such powers as the Board of Directa<; hiref
Executive Officer or the President may from timeimoe prescribe. The Board of Directors may assigany Vice President the title of
Executive Vice President, Senior Vice Presiderdror other such title.

4.12 Controllers. Any Controller shall perform such duties andg®Ess such powers as the Board of Directors, thef Ekecutive
Officer or any Vice President may from time to tiprescribe.

4.13 Secretary. The Secretary shall perform such duties andgxsssuch powers as the Board of Directors or tief Executive
Officer may from time to time prescribe. In additjadhe Secretary shall perform such duties and bagh powers as are incident to the office
of the Secretary, including without limitation thaty and power to give notices of all meetingstotkholders and special meetings of the
Board of Directors, to attend all meetings of stoaklers and the Board of Directors and keep a deabthe proceedings, to maintain a stock
ledger and prepare lists of stockholders and tidresses as required, to be custodian of corpaededs and the corporate seal and to affix
and attest to the same on documents.

In the event of the absence, inabilityefusal to act of the Secretary at any meetingafidtolders or directors, the person presiding @
meeting shall designate a temporary secretarydp kerecord of the meeting.

4.14 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall perform such duties andgssssuch powers as the Board of Directors, thef Exiecutive
Officer or the Chief Financial Officer may from tatio time prescribe. In addition, the Treasurefl geaform such duties and have such
powers as are incident to the office




of Treasurer, including without limitation the dupd power to keep and be responsible for all famdssecurities of the Corporation, to
deposit funds of the Corporation in depositoridected in accordance with these By-Laws, to digbstech funds as ordered by the Board of
Directors, to make proper accounts of such fundd,ta render as required by the Board of Direcstaements of all such transactions and of
the financial condition of the Corporation. Unlélss Board of Directors has designated anothereffais Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer
shall be the Chief Financial Officer of the Corpara.

In the event of the absence, inabilityefusal to act of the Treasurer, the Board of Doescshall appoint a temporary treasurer, who shall
perform the duties and exercise the powers of teasurer.

4.15 Other Officers, Assistant Officers and Agent®fficers, assistant officers and agents, if, anlger than those whose duties are
provided for in these By-laws, shall have such arityr and perform such duties as may from timdrteetbe prescribed by resolution of the
Board of Directors.

4,16 Salaries. Officers of the Corporation shall be entitledstich salaries, compensation or reimbursemeritadisbe fixed or
allowed from time to time by the Board of Directokk officer shall be prevented from receiving ssakary by reason of the fact that the
officer is also a director of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 5—CAPITAL STOCK

5.1 Issuance of Stock. Unless otherwise voted by the stockholderssajlect to the provisions of the Certificate ofdrmoration, the
whole or any part of any unissued balance of theaized capital stock of the Corporation or theolehor any part of any unissued balance of
the authorized capital stock of the Corporatiordhielits treasury may be issued, sold, transfeoreatherwise disposed of by vote of the Board
of Directors in such manner, for such considerasind on such terms as the Board of Directors mésrigéne.

5.2 Certificated and Uncertificated Shares.Shares of stock of the Corporation may be ssreed by stock certificates or
uncertificated, as provided by the General Corpondtaw of the State of Delaware. Every holdertotk of the Corporation, upon written
request to the Corporation, shall be entitled teehecertificate, in such form as may be prescriipethw and by the Board of Directors,
certifying the number and class of shares owneldifmyor her in the Corporation. Each such certiicsttall be signed by, or in the name of the
Corporation by, the Chairman of the Board of Dioest the Chief Executive Officer or the Presidanil the Treasurer or the Secretary of the
Corporation. Any or all of the signatures on thdifieate may be a facsimile.

Each certificate for shares of stock whach subject to any restriction on transfer purst@itie Certificate of Incorporation, the Byaws,
applicable securities laws or any agreement amaggamber of stockholders or among such holderslorporation shall have
conspicuously noted on the face or back of thefiwate either the full text of the restriction arstatement of the existence of such restriction.

5.3 Transfers. Except as otherwise established by rules agualaions adopted by the Board of Directors, argjesti to applicable
law, shares of stock may be transferred on the ©obkhe Corporation (a) in the case of sharesoaksrepresented by a certificate, by the
surrender to the Corporation or its transfer agétite certificate representing such shares prgpmartiorsed or accompanied by a written
assignment or power of attorney properly executedb) in the case of uncertificated shares, op@rdnstructions from the holder of record of
such shares or the holder's legal representativather case with such proof of authority or toéhanticity of signature as the Corporation or
its transfer agent may reasonably require. Exceptay be otherwise required by law, by the Cesgtéoof Incorporation or by these By-Laws,
the Corporation shall be entitled to treat the




record holder of stock as shown on its books agtheer of such stock for all purposes, including playment of dividends and the right to \
with respect to such stock, regardless of any tesngledge or other disposition of such stockijluhe shares have been transferred on the
books of the Corporation in accordance with theiiregnents of these By-Laws.

5.4 Lost, Stolen or Destroyed CertificatesThe Corporation may issue a new certificatsto€k in place of any previously issued
certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen,estrbyed, upon such terms and conditions as thedBddirectors may prescribe, including the
presentation of reasonable evidence of such Ibe#, dr destruction and the giving of such indemag the Board of Directors may require for
the protection of the Corporation or any transfgerd or registrar.

5.5 Record Date. The Board of Directors may fix in advance aedzd a record date for the determination of thekbimiders entitled
to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockleodd or entitled to receive payment of any dividendther distribution or allotment of any
rights in respect of any change, conversion or amgbk of stock, or for the purpose of any other tha€tion. Such record date shall not be
more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) daysrbehe date of such meeting, nor more than @) days prior to any other action to which
such record date relates.

A determination of stockholders of recontitted to notice of or to vote at a meeting ofcétioolders shall apply to any adjournment of the
meeting;provided, howeverthat the Board of Directors may fix a new recdade for the adjourned meeting.

5.6 Dividends. Subject to limitations contained in the Gen&aitporation Law of the State of Delaware, the @leate of
Incorporation and these By-laws, the Board of Doexmay declare and pay dividends upon the sludrespital stock of the Corporation,
which dividends may be paid either in cash, in propor in shares of the capital stock of the Coafion.

ARTICLE 6—INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

6.1 Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party oréataned to be made a party to or is otherwisevedan any
action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminatiministrative or investigative (hereinafter Padceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or
she, or a person for whom he or she is the legaésentative, is or was a director or officer & @orporation or is or was serving at the rec
of the Corporation as a director, officer or tresté another corporation or of a partnership, jegrtture, trust or other enterprise, including
service with respect to employee benefit plans,thdrethe basis of such Proceeding is alleged actigmaction in an official capacity as a
director, officer or trustee or in any other capawihile serving as a director, officer or trustskall be indemnified and held harmless by the
Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by @eneral Corporation Law, as the same exists #seadate hereof or as may hereafter be
amended (but, in the case of any such amendmdgtimthe extent that such amendment permits thp@ation to provide broader
indemnification rights than said law permitted @erporation to provide both prior to such amendnaent as of the date hereof), against all
expense, liability and loss (including attorneg®d, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or pesahd amounts paid or to be paid in
settlement) actually and reasonably incurred diesedl by such person in connection therewith amth sudemnification shall continue as to a
person who has ceased to be a director, officeustee and shall inure to the benefit of his artredrs, executors and administratqregvided,
however, that, except as provided 8ection 6.2hereof, the Corporation shall indemnify any suctspe seeking indemnification in connection
with a Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated bglsperson only if such Proceeding (or part theraafy authorized by the Board of Directors.
The right to indemnification conferred in this A8 6 shall be a contract right and shall incluteright to be paid by the Corporation the
expenses incurred in connection with any such Rdiog in advance of its final dispositigmmovided, howeverthat, if the General
Corporation Law requires, the payment of such egpsiincurred by a director or officer in his or bapacity as a director or officer (and no
any




other capacity in which service was or is renddngduch person while a director or officer, inchagli without limitation service to an emplo
benefit plan) in advance of the final dispositidrad’roceeding shall be made only upon delivephéCorporation of an undertaking, by or on
behalf of such director or officer, to repay all@amts so advanced if it shall ultimately be detaedithat such director or officer is not entitled
to be indemnified under this Article 6 or otherwi3t@e Corporation may, by action of the Board afdbfors, provide indemnification to
employees and agents of the Corporation with theesscope and effect as the foregoing indemnifioatiodirectors, officers and trustees.

6.2 Determination; Claims. If a claim undeBection 6.1of this Article 6 is not paid in full by the Corpation within thirty days after
written notice thereof has been received by thepQmation, the claimant may at any time thereaftérgosuit against the Corporation to recover
the unpaid amount of the claim and, if successfublole or in part, the claimant shall be entitiedbe paid also the expense of prosecuting
such claim. It shall be a defense to any such mg¢tther than an action brought to enforce a clainexpenses incurred in connection with any
Proceeding in advance of its final disposition vehtre required undertaking, if any is required, beean tendered to the Corporation) that the
claimant has not met the standards of conduct whiake it permissible under the General Corpordten for the Corporation to indemnify
the claimant for the amount claimed, but the burdfgoroving such defense shall be on the Corpanatieither the failure of the Corporation
(including the Board, independent legal counseltsostockholders) to have made a determinatioor poi the commencement of such action
that indemnification of the claimant is proper lire ttircumstances because he or she has met theadplstandard of conduct under the
General Corporation Law, nor an actual determimaltip the Corporation (including the Board, indepamdegal counsel, or its stockholders)
that the claimant has not met such applicable stahdf conduct, shall be a defense to the actiameste a presumption that the claimant has
not met the applicable standard of conduct.

6.3 Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification and the paymengxpenses incurred in connection with a Proceeiting
advance of its final disposition conferred in tAigicle 6 shall not be (and they shall not be degtiwebe) exclusive of any other right which
person may have or hereafter acquire under anytstairovision of the Certificate of Incorporatidhese By-Laws, agreement, vote of
stockholders or disinterested directors or otheswis

6.4 Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain arste, at its expense, to protect itself and argctbr, officer, trustee,
employee or agent of the Corporation or anothgpamtion, or of a partnership, joint venture, troisbther enterprise against any expense,
liability or loss (as such terms are used in thiscke 6), whether or not the Corporation would &dke power to indemnify such person against
such expense, liability or loss under the GenecapGration Law.

6.5 Amendment or Repeal. Any repeal or modification of this Article 6alhnot impair or otherwise affect any rights odigations
then existing with respect to any state of facentbr theretofore existing or any action, suit mrgeeding theretofore or thereafter brought
based in whole or in part upon any such statea$fa

6.6 Rebuttable Presumption. This Article 6 shall be liberally construedfavor of indemnification and the payment of expense
incurred in connection with a Proceeding in advaofdés final disposition and there shall be a tttdinie presumption that a claimant under this
Article 6 is entitled to such indemnification artCorporation shall bear the burden of provinglpreponderance of the evidence that such
claimant is not so entitled to indemnification.

6.7 Severability. If any provision of this Article 6 shall be deed invalid or unenforceable, the Corporation steatiain obligated to
indemnify and advance expenses subject to all thomésions of this Article 6 which are not invalid unenforceable.
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ARTICLE 7—GENERAL PROVISIONS

7.1 Fiscal Year. Except as from time to time otherwise desigihdtethe Board of Directors, the fiscal year of @arporation ends ¢
the close of business on the last day in Septeofiesgich year.

7.2 Corporate Seal. The corporate seal shall be in such form ali Beapproved by the Board of Directors.

7.3 Form of Notice. Whenever any notice whatsoever is requirecetgiben in writing to any stockholder by law, by t@ertificate of
Incorporation or by these By-laws, such notice eyiven by a form of electronic transmission & #tockholder to whom such notice is
given has previously consented to the receipt titady electronic transmission.

7.4 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice whatsoever is requirecetgiben by law, by the Certificate of Incorporatimnby these
By-Laws, a waiver of such notice either in writisigned by the person entitled to such notice oh g@rson's duly authorized attorney, or by
facsimile or any other available method, whethdolee at or after the time stated in such waivehythe appearance of such person at such
meeting in person or by proxy, shall be deemedvedgmt to such notice. Any member of the Board wé€tors or any committee thereof who
is present at a meeting shall be conclusively pneslito have waived notice of such meeting excegtvgtuch member attends for the express
purpose of objecting at the beginning of the megtinthe transaction of any business because tleéingds not lawfully called or convened.
Such member shall be conclusively presumed to hasented to any action taken unless his or hegrtisball be entered in the minutes of the
meeting or unless his or her written dissent tdsaagtion shall be filed with the person actingresdecretary of the meeting before the
adjournment thereof or shall be forwarded by regest mail to the Secretary of the Corporation imiatety after the adjournment of the
meeting. Such right to dissent shall not applyrtg member who voted in favor of such action.

7.5 Voting of Securities. Except as the directors may otherwise desigtiageChief Executive Officer or Treasurer may veainotice
of, and act as, or appoint any person or persoasttas, proxy or attorney-fiact for this Corporation (with or without power sifibstitution) at
any meeting of stockholders or shareholders ofaihgr corporation or organization, the securitieafich may be held by this Corporation.

7.6 Evidence of Authority. A certificate by the Secretary, or a temposggretary, as to any action taken by the stockingldérectors
a committee or any officer or representative of@meporation shall, as to all persons who relytendertificate in good faith, be conclusive
evidence of such action.

7.7 Certificate of Incorporation. All references in these By-Laws to the Ceréifeof Incorporation shall be deemed to refer € th
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation,aasended or restated and in effect from time t@tim

7.8 Transactions with Interested Parties.No contract or transaction between the Corparatnd one or more of the directors or
officers, or between the Corporation and any otleeporation, partnership, association, or otheanization in which one or more of the
directors or officers are directors or officershawe a financial interest, shall be void or voldalely for this reason, or solely because the
director or officer is present at or participatestie meeting of the Board of Directors or a corteriof the Board of Directors which authori.
the contract or transaction or solely becausehgispr their votes are counted for such purpose, if

(1) The material facts as to his, hetheir relationship or interest and as to the cattoa transaction are disclosed or are known
to the Board of Directors or the committee, andBbard of Directors or committee of the Board ofdators in good faith authorizes
the contract or
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transaction by the affirmative votes of a majodfythe disinterested directors, even though thmidirested directors be less than a
quorum;

(2) The material facts as to his, hetheir relationship or interest and as to the cattoa transaction are disclosed or are known
to the stockholders entitled to vote thereon, &edcontract or transaction is specifically approwegood faith by vote of the
stockholders; or

(3) The contract or transaction is fart@athe Corporation as of the time it is authatjzgpproved or ratified by the Board of
Directors, a committee of the Board of Directonsthe stockholders.

Common or interested directors may be it determining the presence of a quorum at aingeef the Board of Directors or of a
committee, which authorizes the contract or tratsac

7.9 Severability. Any determination that any provision of theselRws is for any reason inapplicable, illegal meffective shall not
affect or invalidate any other provision of theselEaws.

7.10 Pronouns. All pronouns used in these By-Laws shall bentks@ to refer to the masculine, feminine or newimgular or plural,
as the identity of the person or persons may requir

7.11 Contracts. In addition to the powers otherwise grantedffizers pursuant to Article 4 hereof, the Boardafectors may
authorize any officer or officers, or any agentagents, of the Corporation to enter into any catoato execute and deliver any instrument in
the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, arwth swuthority may be general or confined to spedaifstances.

7.12 Loans. The Corporation may, to the extent permittecipplicable law, lend money to, or guarantee adigation of, or
otherwise assist any officer or other employeéhefCorporation or of its subsidiaries, including afficer or employee who is a Director of
the Corporation or its subsidiaries, wheneverhajudgment of the Directors, such loan, guarantyssistance may reasonably be expected to
benefit the Corporation. The loan, guaranty or pHssistance may be with or without interest, aag bre unsecured, or secured in such mg
as the Board of Directors shall approve, includimghout limitation, a pledge of shares of stockttd Corporation. Nothing in this section s
be deemed to deny, limit or restrict the powergudranty or warranty of the Corporation at comnawa br under any statute.

7.13 Inspection of Books and RecordsThe Board of Directors shall have power fromeito time to determine to what extent and at
what times and places and under what conditiongeguaations the accounts and books of the Corjporadr any of them, shall be open to the
inspection of the stockholders; and no stockhodtiall have any right to inspect any account or bmo#tocument of the Corporation, except as
conferred by the laws of the State of Delawaregsmiand until authorized so to do by resolutiothefBoard of Directors or of the stockhold
of the Corporation.

7.14 Section Headlines. Section headings in these Byvs are for convenience of reference only and simalbe given any substant
effect in limiting or otherwise construing any pigien herein.

7.15 Inconsistent Provisions. In the event that any provision of these Bydadsvor becomes inconsistent with any provisiothef
Certificate of Incorporation, the General Corparatiaw of the State of Delaware or any other ajpplie law, the provision of these By-laws
shall not be given any effect to the extent of sinclonsistency but shall otherwise be given fultéoand effect.

ARTICLE 8—AMENDMENTS

8.1 By the Board of Directors. These By-Laws may be altered, amended or regealnew By-Laws may be adopted by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the directors peat at any regular or special meeting of the Bo&idirectors at which a quorum is present.
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8.2 By the Stockholders. Subject to the advance notice requirementfosit in Section 2.12 these By-Laws may be altered, amended
or repealed or new By-Laws may be adopted by tfieredtive vote of the majority of the Stockholdgnesent at any annual meeting of the
Stockholders at which a quorum is present.
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REGISTRANT'S SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT 21

The following table sets forth, at NovemB8r 2007, the Registrant's significant operatimgsiiaries and other associated companie:
their respective incorporation jurisdictions. Thegistrant owns 100% of the voting securities oheaitthe subsidiaries listed below. There are
no subsidiaries not listed in the table, which vdgirh the aggregate, be considered significant.

Active Subsidiaries

State of
Incorporation

Beacon Sales Acquisition, In

Quality Roofing Supply, Inc

Beacon Canada, In

Best Distributing Co

The Roof Center, Inc

West End Lumber Company, Ir
Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Comp.
JGA Beacon, Inc

Shelter Distribution, Inc

Beacon Pacific, Inc

Beacon Sales Company, Ir

North Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, |

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
North Caroling
Delaware
Delaware
Nova Scotie
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Massachuseti
Ohio
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos:12Z8879 and 333-119747) of Beacon
Roofing Supply, Inc. of our reports dated Novembgr2007 with respect to the consolidated finanstialements of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal oardver financial reporting of Beacon Roofing Styppnc., included in the Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended September 30, 2007.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
November 27, 200
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Robert R. Buck, certify that
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatammmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 28, 2007

/s/ ROBERT R. BUCK

Robert R. Buck
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, David R. Grace, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &dave::

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatammmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 28, 2007

/s/ DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bea Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK.@or the year ended September 30,
2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @asion on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, RoBerBuck, the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbanes-@xiegf 2002, that:

(D) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ ROBERT R. BUCK

Robert R. Buck
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

November 28, 200

A signed original of this written statemeajuired by Section 906, or other document autb&timig, acknowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foitminvthe electronic version of this written statmhrequired by Section 906, has been
provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ined by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furetsto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@DO2 and shall not, except to the extent
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfiled by the Company for purposes of Sectiomwflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bea Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company") on FormK.@or the year ended September 30,
2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, DaRidGrace, the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbanes-@xiegf 2002, that:

(D) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/sl DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

November 28, 200

A signed original of this written statemeajuired by Section 906, or other document autb&timig, acknowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foitminvthe electronic version of this written statmhrequired by Section 906, has been
provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ined by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furetsto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@DO2 and shall not, except to the extent
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfiled by the Company for purposes of Sectiomwflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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